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North Oimsted City School District

Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards Receipts and Expenditures

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying schedule of federal awards receipts and expenditures is a summary of
the activity of the District’s federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on
the cash basis of accounting.

2. Food Distribution

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of the
commodities received and disbursed. Moneys are commingled with State grants. ltis
assumed federal moneys are expended first. At June 30, 1999, the District had no
significant food commoeodities in inventory.

3. tional School Lunch
Federal monies received by the District for this program is commingled with State grants
and local revenues. |t is assumed that federal monies are expended first.

CFDA - Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County 4
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Lausche Building, 12¢h Floor

STATE OF OHIO ) 615 Superior Avenue, N. W,
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR i} Cleveland, Ohio 44113
Jim PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Telephone (216) 787-3665
(800) 626-2297

Facsimile (216) 787-3361

www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

North Olmsted City School District
Cuyahoga County

24100 Palm Drive

North Olmsted, Ohio 44070

To The Board of Education:

We have audited the financial stalements of the North Olmsied City School District, Cuyahoga County, Ohio,
(the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 135, 1998, We conducted our auditin accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
coniracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect onthe determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not exprass such an opinion. The resulls of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and petforming our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporiing. Our consideration
of ihe internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
over fihanclal reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively fow
level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely pericd by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have
reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated December 15, 1889.

North Olmsted City School Disirict, Cuyahoga County 5



Motih Olmsted City School District e )
Report on Compliance and on Internal Control _

Required by Govemment Auditing Standards
Page -2-

This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of Education, and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties. )

December 15, 1998

North Cimsted City School District, Cuyahoga County
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+ Lausche Building, 12th Floor
STATE OF OHIO } 615 Superior Avenue, N. W,
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cleveland, Ohio 44113
Jim PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE . Telephone (216) 787-3665

 (800) 626-2297
Facsimile (216) 787-3361
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE MAJOR
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

North Olmsted City School District
Cuyahoga County

24100 Palm Drive

North Olmsted, Ohio 44070

To the Board of Education:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the North Qlmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the
District) with the types of compliance requirements described in U.S. Office of Management and Budget
{OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 1999. The District’'s major federal program is identified in the Summary of Auditor's Resuits
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings. Compliance with the reguirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the District’s
management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepied auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing Siandards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audils of States, Local Governmaeants,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompiiance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’'s compiiance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considerad necessary inthe circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the District’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with ihe requirements referred to above that
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 1988.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audif, we considered the Bistrict’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County 7



Nortt Olmisted City School District

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the Major
Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance
with OMB Circular A-133

Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal contro! components does not reduce to a ralatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that wouid
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely pericd by employees In the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be materia!
weaknesses.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the District as of and for the year ended June
30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 1988, Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming an opinmion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Federa! Awards Receipts and Expenditures is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the generai-purpose
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the generai-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of Education, and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is nof intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

December 15, 19585

North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County 8



NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
JUNE 30, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

A-133 §.505 i
(Y1) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
{d)(1)(ii) Were there any material conirol weakness conditions
reported at the financial staternent level (GAGAS)? No

(d)(1){ii Were there any other reportable control weakness
conditions reported at the financial statement level
{GAGAS)? No

() (1)(iii) Was there any reporied non-compliance at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)? No

(d¥(T)(iv) Were there any material internal control weakness
conditions reported for major federal programs? No

(D {(1Hiv) Were there any other reportable internal control
weakness conditions reported for major federal

programs? No
(¥ 1)) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Ungualified
(¥ 1){vi Are there any reportable findings under Sec. .5107? No
{d){1) (vii} Major Programs (list) Nutrition Cluster:
National School Lunch
Program {CFDA No.
10.550) and Food
Distribution (CFDA No.
10.555)
{d¥{1)(viii} | Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A: >$300,000
Type B: all others
programs
{dY(1¥(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None.

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None.

North Olmsted City School District, Cuyahoga County
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24100 PALM DRIVE, NORTH OLMSTED, OHIO 44070-2844
(440)-779-3548 Fax: 779-3546

5
dmseal

December 15, 1999

Members of the North Olmsted
Board of Education:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the North Olmsted City School District for the year ended June 30, 1999. This CAFR
includes an opinion from the State Auditor and conforms to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governmental entities. Responsibility for the
accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the School District. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds and account groups of the School District. This report will provide the
taxpayers of the North Olmsted City School District with comprehensive financial data in
a format which will enable them to gain an understanding of the School District's financial
affairs. Copies will be made available to the North Olmsted Public Library, major
taxpayers, financial rating services, local bankers and other interested parties.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections as follows:

1. The Introductory Section, which contains a Table of Contents, Letter of
Transmittal, List of Principal Officials, an Organizational Chart of the School
District, the GFOA Certificate of Achievement, ASBO Certificaie of
Excellence, and the State of Ohio Auditor's Award.

2. The Financial Section which begins with the Report of Independent
Accountants and includes the General Purpose Financial Statements and
Notes that provide an overview of the School District's financial position and
operating results, the Combining Statements by Fund Type, and other
schedules that provide detailed information relative to the General Purpose
Financial Statements.

3. The Statistical Section presents a ten year summary of social and
economic data, financial trends and demographic information of the North
Olmsted City School District.
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SCHOOL DISTRICT

The North Olmsted City School District is located in western Cuyahoga County,
approximately 17 miles southwest of downtown Cleveland. The School District
encompasses the entire City of North Olmsted, a community with a population of
approximately 34,000. The City is primarily residential with a significant commercial tax
base of retail businesses. S

The School District was chartered in 1831 by the Ohio State legislature two years after
the name "Olmstead" was assigned to the area. The region was named after Aaron
Olmstead, an investor and Revolutionary War soldier who purchased land in the area in
1794. The exact time and reason for changing to the current spelling is unclear from the
historical records. In 1837, under the auspices of the Office of the State Superintendent of
Common School Education, Township Trustees were authorized io levy compulsory
taxes for the support of public education. in 1853 State laws were enacted to create
locally elected boards of education to govem local school districts. Today, the
North Olmsted Board of Education is comprised of five members, elected at large, with
staggered four ysar terms.

Statutorialy, the School District operates under standards prescribed by the Ohio State
Board of Education as provided in Section 3301.07 and Section 119.01 of the Ohio
Revised Code, to provide educational services authorized by charter and further
mandated by State and Federal agencies. Under Ohio law, the School District is a
separate and distinct unit of government with its own taxing authority.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

North Olmsted City School District has reviewed its reporting entity definition in order to
insure conformance with the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity." In evaluating how to define the School District
for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all agencies,
departments and organizations making up the North Olmsted City School District (the
primary government) and its potential component units.

Excluded from the reporting entity because they are fiscally independent of the School
District are the City of North Olmsted, the Cuyahoga County Public Library, and the
Parent Teacher Organization. A complete discussion of the School District's reporting
entity is provided in Note 1 to the general purpose financial statements.

The School District is a member of the Lake Erie Educational Computer Association, the
Polaris Career Center, the North Olmsted City Schools Education Foundation, and the
Ohio Schocl Council Association. The relationship of these jointly governed
organizations with the School District is described in more detail in Note 19 of the
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Currently, the School District enjoys a very solid and stable financial position. During the
year, General Fund unrestricied cash balance increased 32% to $11,393,242 at June 30,
1999 while the General Fund unreserved equity fund balance increased 34% to $5,764,059
during this period of time.

The favorable financial position was made possible when the community supperted the
passage of a 1.9 mill permanent improvement levy in November 1994 followed by the
passage of a 5.9 mill operating levy in August 1985. These levies generated the funds
necessary for the School District to meet its current financial cobligations, maintain iis
buildings and grounds, and develop an effective computer technology program and
enhance instructional services. During the levy campaigns, the Board of Education
promised the community that the funds from these levies would support the District for at
least five years. With the implementation of aggressive cost containment and revenue
enhancement programs by the administration, the School District has successfully
delayed the need to seek the passage of a new tax levy for six years.

But why is it necessary for schools to periodically seek additional funds from the
taxpayer? The answer to this question is based upon the nature of school funding in Chio
and can be illustrated with the foliowing graph of the School District's cash flow forecast:
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School districis in Ohio experience significant increases in their general fund cash
baiances for two or three years following the passage of a school levy (as indicated by the
blue line in the above graph) until normal inflationary growth in expenses (as indicated by
the red line in the above graph) exceed the revenue received during the year (as indicated
by the green line in the above graph). The General Fund cash balance will then start to
decline as the surplus cash balance is used to fund operating deficits. Growth in revenues
are severely restricted in Ohio because legislation requires school districts to
periodically retum to the voters and request an increase in the amount of taxes assessed.

The School District's primary source of operating revenue is from the levying of taxes on
real and perscnal property located within the community. During fiscal year 1999, 62.6
percent of the District's General Fund operating revenue comes from the collection of real
estate taxes on residential and commercial property, 9.0 percent from tangible personai
property and 4.6 percent from public utility property for a total of 76.2 percent. The long-term
financial health of the School District is dependent on the stability of the tax base.

The total assessed valuation of residential and commercial properties in the community
has increased 77.9 percent in the last ten years. The increase in value was due
primarily to revaluation and updating of property values by the County Auditor every three
years and is illustrated in the graph below. The City of North Olmsted is nearly completely
developed, so future increases in the tax duplicate will come primarily from revaluation by
the County Auditor.
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Current state law prevents school districts in Ohio from receiving additional tax revenue
when property values are revalued by the County Auditor. In 1976, the Ohic General
Assembly passed House Bill 920. This law provides residential and commercial real
property owners with a tax credit equal to any tax increase caused by an increase in
vaiue of all real property located in the taxing district as a result of the County Auditor's
revaluation. In effect, House Bill 920 removes inflationary revenue growth in revenue and
requires school districts throughout Ohio to petiodically place tax issues on the ballot for
voter approval in order to receive additional revenue. Based upon current financial
projections, the North Olmsted City School District will be able to operate through fiscal
2002 without seeking the passage of a new tax levy.

Tangible personal property tax is assessed on the value of inventory and equipment
owned by businesses located within the community. The provisions of House Bill 920 do
not apply, and schools enjoy inflationary revenue growth in this source of revenue. In the
past 5 years, the School District has experienced an average annual increase of 9
percent in these taxes as illustrated in the graph below:
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Unfortunately, this favorable trend in personal property tax collections will not continue. in
June 1988, the Ohio General Assembly passed House Bill 284 which will phase-out the
inventory portion of personal property tax assessment. The phase-out period will be over 25
years beginning in calendar 2002 at an annual rate of approximately 4 percent. Once fully
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implemented, the School District's operating revenue could be reduced $2,400,000
annually. As of the date of this report, the Ohio General Assembly has not provided
another source of funding to replace the lost {axes.

Public utility property tax is assessed on the value of power plants and equipment owned
by electric, gas and telephone companies. Public utility property tax collections have
generally been a stable source of revenue for the School District. in June 1998, the Ohio
General Assembly passed Senate Bill 3 to deregulate the electric utility industry in
Ohio. Under this legislation, the assessment rate on electric utility property for taxing
purposes would be reduced from the present 100 percent for power plants and 88 percent
for transmission and distribution property to 25 percent. The legislation provides for an
alternative funding method to replace the lost tax revenue the school district will realize.

Money received from the State of Ohio through the State Foundation Program to assist in
the funding of education has been declining as a major source of operating revenue for
the North Olmsted City School District. In fiscal year 1991, the Foundation Program
provided over 26 percent of the School District's annuat operating revenue. Today, the
Foundation Program accounts for only 18.5 percent of the School District's operating
revenue. The formula used to allocate state funds among school districts in Ohio
redistributes these funds from school districts with large tax bases such as North
Olmsted to school districts with a smaller tax base. It is anticipated that money received
from the State of Ohio will continue to decline as a major source of revenue as the
financial burden of funding public education shifts to the local taxpayer.

On March 27, 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring the State of
Ohio's method of funding primary and secondary schools through the State Foundation
Program to be inadequate and unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of its ruling to
allow the State's legislature to design a new funding method which is less dependent on
property taxes. Since this ruling, numerous pieces of legislation have been passed in an
attempt to address the issues identified by the Ohio Supreme Court. As of the date of
these financial statements, the School District is unable to determine what effect, if any,
this decision will have on the amount of future State funding. See Note 20 of the general
purpose financial statements for a more detailed discussion.

MAJOR INITIATIVES - FISCAL YEAR 19399

During the year, the School District continued its work on development and implementation
of its Strategic Plan to significantly improve student academic achievements, enhance
curriculum development, integrate new technology, and increase fiscal responsibiiity.

One of the primary goals identified in the Strategic Plan was the updating of curriculum

and instructional programs. The math, language arts, social studies, science, foreign
language and industrial technology curriculums have been reviewed and revised with
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new textbooks and instructional materials purchased in each area. Beginning next year
and continuing into the following years, the curriculum review process will be underway
for the fine and performing arts. An ongoing cycle of cumiculum review will continue
into future years to make sure that the School District's program is well coordinated and
will keep pace with the demands placed upon our students in the 21st Century. In so
doing, there will be continual emphasis on training teachers to properly and effectively
implement these curricufums.

One of the measures as to the effectiveness of our curriculum program is how well North
Olmsted students score on national standardized tests. Based on the most recent tOWA
Test of Basic Skills, our 7th graders scored at the 87th percentile. On the Scholastic
Aptitude Test (SAT), North Olmsted students continue to out-perform students across the
country and in the State of Ohio on both the verbal and math sections of the test as
illustrated in the graphs bejow.

SAT Verbal Test Scores SAT Math Test Scores
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The success of the District's education program received recognition from the business
community when the North Olmsted City Schools was presented with the Gold Medal
Award Winner by Expansion Management Magazine this year.

Every year Expansion Management Magazine ranks more than 1,500 school districts
across the country on how well those districts prepare students to be part of the work
force after graduation. School districts are evaluated in three areas: graduation rates
and college scores for SAT and ACT; a community's financial commitment to education,
including student-to-teacher ratios, per pupil expenditures, and teacher salaries; and
the community's adult education and income levels.
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The Gold Medal Award is presented to the top 15 percent of the schools evaluated. North
Olmsted City Schools was the only district in Cuyahoga County to receive the Gold Medal
and one of four in Ohio to receive the award.

Beyond improvements in student performance, the growth in technology and the
permanent improvements to buildings and grounds throughout the School District has
been impressive. All of this is due to the foresight this community had in passing a 1.9
mili Permanent Improvement Levy in November of 1994 which raises over $1.1 million
annually. With this money, the School District has been able to repair or replace the roofs
on all buildings, complete massive asphait and concrete repairs, and the wiring of all
classrooms for technology. Electronic and voice mail and cable TV communication
continue to grow in use throughout the School District. The ratioc of students to
computers continues to get smaller from 15.3 students per computer in fiscal year 1995
to only 9.3 students per computer today.

The School District has completed a comprehensive facility study to identify the long
term needs of the School District. The preliminary findings of the study has identified the
need to possibly construct a new middle school or renovate the existing building, explore
the construction of a performing art center, reactivate an idle elementary building,
and renovate all buildings. The Board of Education is currently reviewing the
recommendations of the study and will consider the appropriate course of action within
the year. Implementation of the study's findings would require the passage of a bond levy.

The Administration has recognized their responsibility to manage the School District's
funds in an efficient and economic manner. The administration has implemented
aggressive cost containment and revenue enhancement programs. These programs
include zero based budgeting techniques and cost benefit analysis methods similar fo
those employed by the business community. To date, this program has yielded over $2.5
million in savings.

One of the major financial goals identified by the Board of Education was the
containment of rising healthcare costs. During fiscal year 1999, healthcare costs were
reduced over $400,000 from prior years. The dramatic reduction in costs can be
contributed to a number of factors: redesign of the medical plan, higher than normal
retirements and a substantial negotiated reduction in administrative fees. The
significance of this accomplishment can best be illustrated by comparing our monthly
premiums for family medical coverage with neighboring school districts. North Olmsted's
monthly premium for family coverage is 18 to 67 percent lower!

Internal Accounting and Budgetary Controf
The School District's accounting system is organized on a "fund" basis. Each fund (and
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account group) is a distinct self-balancing accounting entity. Reports for general
governmental operations and expendable trust funds are presented on the modified
accrual basis whereby revenues are recognized when measurable and available, and
expenditures are recognized when goods and services are received. Reporis of the
School District's proprietary operations are presented on the accrual basis whereby
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses when incurred.

in developing the School District's accounting system, much consideration was given to
the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Intemal accounting controls are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance, regarding the safeguarding of assets
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records
for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept
of reasonable assurance is based on the assumption that the cost of internal accounting
controls should not exceed the benefits expected to be derived from their implementation.

The School District utilizes a fully automated accounting system as well as an
automated system of control for fixed asseis and payroll. These systems, coupled with
the manual auditing of each voucher prior to payment, ensures that the financial
information generated is both accurate and reliable.

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board of Education adopts either a temporary
appropriation measure or a permanent appropriation measure for that fiscal year. If a
temporary appropriation measure is first adopted, the permanent appropriation measure
must be adopted upon receipt from the County Auditor of an amended certificate of
estimated resources based on final assessed values and tax rates, which is usually
within the first three months of the fiscal year.

Annual appropriations may not exceed the County Budget Commission's official estimate
of resources. The County Auditor must certify that the Board of Education's appropriation
measures, including any supplements or amendments, do not exceed the amount set
forth in the latest of those official estimates.

All disbursements and transfers of cash between funds require appropriation authority
from the Board. Although the legal level of appropriations is at the fund and object level
for the General Fund, all budgets are maintained at the object account level within a _
function and fund. All purchase order requests must be approved by either the
Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent and cettified by the Treasurer; necessary
funds are then encumbered and purchase orders released to vendors. Those requests
which exceed the available appropriation are rejected until additional appropriations are
secured. -

The accounting system used by the School District provides interim financial reports
which detail year-to-date expenditures and encumbrances versus the original
appropriation plus any additional appropriation made to date.



Administrators and school principals are furnished monthly reports showing the status of
the budget accounts for which they are responsible. in addition, an on line inquiry system
is available at each cost center site. As an additional safeguard, all employees are
covered by a blanket bond, and certain individuals in policy-making roles are covered by
a separate, higher limit bond.

The basis of accounting and the various funds and account groups utilized by the North
Olmsted City Schools are fully described in Note 2 of the financial statements. Additional
information on the School District's budgetary accounting can also be found in Note 2.

General Govern_mental Funcition

The following schedule presents a summary of revenue for the governmental funds,
which include general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects, and expendable
trust funds, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 1898. Also inciuded with this
summary is the amount and percentage of increases or decreases in relation to the prior
year's revenue and an analysis of significant fluctuations.

199¢ 1998 Amount Percent

Bevenue Amount Amount of Change of Change
Taxes $ 26,296,670 $ 25,834,991 $ 461,679 1.8%
Tuition and fees T 496,914 682,765 (185,851) -27.2%
Injerest 818,268 737,345 80,923 11.0%
Property Rentals 47,902 61,403 (13,501) -22.0%
intergovernmental 10,930,842 10,574,697 355,945 3.4%
Extracurricular activities 488,527 453,664 34,863 7.7%
Other 94,404 409,877 (315,573) -77.0%
Total $ 39,173,327 $ 38.754.842 $ 418485 1.1%

Tax revenue increased a modest $461,679 or 1.8 percent during fiscal year 1999, The
increase is due primarily to new commercial construction and increase inventory levels
maintained by retail businesses located in the School District. It is anticipated that future
increases will be limited to one or two percent.

Intergovernmental revenue increased $355,945 or 3.4% during fiscal year 1999 and
is due primarily to changes in the formula used to allocate money received from the State
of Ohio through the State Funding Program. Future increases are difficult to predict at
this time. See Note 20 of the general purpose financial satements for a more detail
discussion of future state funding.

Decreased tuition and fees revenue reflects a timing difference in the recognition of tuition
charged to other school districis for nonresident students aftending special education
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classes in North Olmsted. Revenue recognized in 1998 reflects a normal year of collection
and should continue for the foreseeable future.

Increased interest eamings is due to additional funds availabie for investment over the
prior year and the implementation of a new cash management program.

Other revenue decreased $315,573 or 77.0% during fiscal year 1999. In 1998, the School
District received a $223,073 refund from the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation which
was not available in 1889. Similar refunds are not anticipated in future years.

The following schedule presents a summary of governmental fund expenditures for the
general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects and expendable trust funds for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998. The summary alsc includes the amount
and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to the prior year's expenditures and
an analysis of significant fluctuations.

1999 1988 Amount Percent
Expenditures Amount Amount of Change of Change
Current Operations:
Instruction $21,974,455 $ 20,035,314 $1,938,141 8.7%
Support Service: :
Pupils 1,909,027 1,911,440 (2,413) -0.1%
Instructional Staff 1,178,549 1,161,826 16,923 1.5%
Board of Education 165,873 183,336 (27,483) -15.0%
Administration 2,176,289 2,148,822 27,467 1.3%
Fiscal Services 702,775 658,072 44,703 6.8%
Business 280,832 239,966 40,866 17.0%
Operation & Maintenance 2,892,338 2,972,227 (79,889) 2.7%
Pupil Transportation 1,211,191 1,189,912 21,279 1.8%
Central Services 647,923 - 793,603 (145,680) -18.4%
Community Services 377,860 394,187 (16,627) -4.2%
Extracurricular Activities: : o )
Academic Qriented 147,583 134,089 13,494 10.1%
Sports Oriented 649,709 633,586 16,123 2.5%
Total operating expenses 34,304,204 32,456 180 1,848,024 5.7%
Capital Outlay 1,412,553 1,760,255 (347,702) -19.8%
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 240,865 415,068 (175,103) -42.1%
Interest Charges - 121,931 179,407 (57,4786) T-32.0%
Total Expenditures $36,079,553  $34811810 $1,267.743  36%
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Total expenditures increased only 3.6% during fiscal year 1999. Significant changes in
individual operating expenditures categories are as follows:

Instruction expenditures increased due to a modest increase in staffing, severance
payments due to retirements and purchase of classroom supplies that were previously
reported in 1998 in the Enterprise Fund - Uniform School Supplies.

The decline in Central Services expenditures reflect reduced repairs and maintenance
for management information system and central duplicating services.

Capital Qutlays decreased 19.8% during fiscal year 1999. The decrease reflects a normal
year to year fluctuation due to the timing of expenditures.

Reduction in debt service reflects the decline in the outstanding principal balance.

General Fund Balance

The General Fund balance increased 42.2 percent from $8,858,740 at June 30, 1998 to
$9,749,849 at June 30, 1999. The increase primarily reflects the additional tax revenue
received from a 5.9 mill operating levy passed in August 1985 and new commercial
construction within the District. School districts in Ohio experience significant increases
in their general fund balance for two to four years following the passage of a school levy
until normal inflationary growth in expenses exceed the revenue collected from the
levy. Based upon current financial projections, the General Fund balance will continue to
increase and peak to approximately $11,000,000 in fiscal year 2001 and then will start to
decline as the balance is used to fund operating deficits. See graph of School district's
Cash Flow Forecast on page viil of transmittal.

Financial Highlights - Enterprise Funds

The School District classifies its Food Service and Adult Education programs as
enterprise operations. {t is the Board of Education's desire to operate these programs on
a self-supporting basis from the revenue earned from operations.

The Food Service program provides lunches and other food related services to the pupils
and staff of the Schooi Disfrict, operates and manages the lunch programs for a number

of area school districts, and offers catering services to outside groups. The Aduit
Education program offers various educational classes to the community.

During fiscal year 19899, Food Service operated at a $40,430 loss. The loss is primarily
due to high labor and fringe benefit costs associated with the program's operations and
the loss of revenue associated with the closing of schools for four days due to severe
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weather conditions during 1999. As indicated in the graph below, the Administration has
significantly reduced the program's annual operating losses by negotiating salary
freezes, implementing numerous cost saving measures and revenue enhancement
ideas. The Administration will continue in its efforts to alleviate the operating loss.

North Olmsted City Schools “
Analysis of Food Service Operating Losses
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Financial Highlight - Internal Service Fund

The Internal Service Funds account for all activities in which the School District provides
goods and/or service to other governmental agencies or to students on a cost plus
reimbursement basis. The School District provided the following types of services during
fiscal year 1998: bus maintenance, regional transit and rotary services. During fiscal year
19399, the internal Service Funds operated in total at a $37,010 loss. The loss is due
primarily to the timing of maintenance expenses and equipment purchases charged to
the Contracted Bus Service Fund.

Financial Highlight - Fiduciary Fund
Included in this category are Trust and Agency Funds used to account for assets held by
the School District in a trustee capacity. Trust Funds represent expendable trusts for

groups. Agency Funds typically consist of student managed actlvmes Total assets in
these funds at June 30, 1999 were $61,160. -
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General Fixed Assels

The School District's general fixed assets are used to operate the education and support
function of the District and are not financial resources available for expenditure. The total
general fixed assets at June 30, 1999 were $25,356,984. These assets are accounted
for at historical cost and no depreciation is recognized for financial purposes.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 1999, general obligation notes outstanding totaled $547,322 and were issued
for the acquisition of school buses and the implementation of energy conservation
improvements. These notes are scheduled to be retired in various amounts through the
year 2006. See Note 11 of the general purpose financial statements for a move detail
discussion. As of June 30, 1999, the School District's total general obligation debt limit
was $65,763,502 and its unvoted legal debt limit was $730,706.

Cash Management

The Board has developed and implemented a cash management program to maximize
the investment eaming potential of all available cash. The program utiizes a remote
disbursement bank arrangement combined with an on-line control disbursement system
which enables the Board to maintain minimum account balances.

The School District maintains a conservative investment program with safety of principal
and liquidity as its chief considerations for investment seiection. Cash not needed for
immediate use during the year was invested in the State Treasurer's Asset Reserve of
Ohic (STAR) Program administered by the Office of the Treasurer of the State of Ohio
and Fifth Third Bank’s Liquid Asset Management (LAM)} Account.

STAR Ohio is an investment ‘pool offered to poilitical subdivisions of the State of Ohio for
the investment of funds. STAR Ohio's investment portfolio consisis of investments
authorized by the Ohio Revised Code including instruments of the Federal government
and its agencies, collateralized certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements. This
investment pool offers daily liquidity of all funds and no minimum balance
reguirements. The Fifth Third Bank LAM Account is an investment portfolic managed by
Fifth Third Bank. The account is used to investrnent interim moneys in securities with a
maturity of one to two years.

Total interest eamed by the School District was $819,323 for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1999 of which $723,425 was credited to General Fund, $5,903 to Auxiliary Services
Special Revenue Fund, $77,302 to Debt Service Fund and $11,638 to the Permanent
Improvement Fund. As required by law $1,055 was credited to the Food Service Fund.



Risk Management

The School District provides employees and their dependents a comprehensive medical,
prescription drug and dental program. The program is self-insured and administered by
Medical Mutual of Ohio. Stop-loss insurance is maintained with an aggregate stop-loss
threshold of $2.0 million.

All employees of North Olmsted City School District are covered by a bianket bond, while
certain individuals in policy-making roles are covered by separate, higher limit bond
coverage. ]

The School District contracts with Nationwide Insurance Company for property and liability
insurance coverage. The limits on professional liability coverage is $2.0 million per
occurrence and a $5.0 million aggregate limit with a $1.0 million supplemental umbrella
policy. Automobile liability has a $3.0 million combined single limit with a $1.0 million
supplemental umbrella policy. Settied claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage
in the past several years.

The School District participates in the State Workers' Compensation plan and pays an
annual premium based on a rate per $100 of salaries. The School District is a member of
the Ohio Schools Board Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating Program and
qualifies for a 45 percent reduction in the workers' compensation premium.

Pension Plan

All School District employees are covered by the statewide State Teachers Retirement
System (STRS) or the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS). Employee
contributions to both systems are based on a percentage of employees' salaries. State law
requires the School District to pay 14 percent of employees' saiaries into each retirement
system. See Note 15 to the general purpose financial statements for additional detail.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

State statutes and federal regulations require the School District to be subjected to
periodical examinations by an independent auditor. An annual audit serves to maintain
and strengthen the School District's accounting and budgetary controis. independent

auditor Jim Petro, Auditor of State, was selected to render an opinion on the

School District's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1999. The
opinion appears at the beginning of the financial section of this report.

Pursuant to statute, the State prescribes a uniform accounting system to standardize
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accounting classtfication and financial reporting for all public school districts in Ohio. T!'Je
School District adopted and has been in conformance with that system beginning with its
financial report for the 1979 year.

AWARDS
GFOA Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financiai Reporting to the North
Olmsted City School District for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year
ended June 30, 1998. The Cettificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in
the area of governmental financial reporting. In 1985, North Olmsted City School District
was the first school district in Ohio to receive this award and has received the award for
fourteen consecutive years.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a govemment unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose
contents conform to program standards. Such a report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe our current
report continues to conform to the Ceriificate of Achievement program requirements, and
we are submitting it to GFOA.

ASBO Internaticnal Certificate of Excellence

The School District received the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO}
international Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 1998. This award
certifies that the report substantially conforms to the principies and standards of financial
reporting as recommended and adopted by ASBO. The award is granted only after an
intensive review of financial reports by an expert ASBO panel of review consisting of
certified public accountants and practicing school officials. Receiving the award is
recognition that a schoo! system has met the highest standards of excellence in school
financial reporting.

A Ceriificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe our current report

continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are
submitting it to ASBO.
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STATE OF OHIO AUDITOR'S AWARD

In October of 1999, the School District received the State of Chio Auditor's Award issued by
Jim Petro, Auditor of State, for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year
ended June 30, 1887. This award recognize school systems that have met the highest

standards of excellence in school financial reporting. The award is valid for a period of one

year and we believe our current report continues to meet the award's strict criteria.

GOLD MEDAL AWARD

in November 1999, the North Olmsted City Schoois received Expansion Management
Magazine's Gold Medal Award. Each year, Expansion Management Magazine ranks
more than 1,500 school districts across the country on how well those districts
prepare students to be part of the force after graduation. School! districts are evaluated in
three areas: graduation rates and college scores for SAT and ACT; a community's
financial commiiment to education, including student-to-teacher ratios, per pupil
expenditures, and teacher salaries; and the community's adult education and income
levels.

The Gold Medal Award is presented to the top 15 percent of the schools evaluated. North
Oimsted City Schools was one of four schools in Ohio to receive the award.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The publication of this report significantly increases the accountability of the School
District to the taxpayers of North Olmsted City School District. This accomplishment
would not have been possible without the support and efforts of the staff of the
Treasurer's office, administrators and employees of the School District. Assistance from
the County Auditor's office staff and outside agencies made possible the fair presentation
of statistical data. In addition, special appreciation is expréssed to Robbie DeCoske from
the firm of Costin & Company, CPA, Inc. for the advice and guidance rendered to the
production of this report. )

Respectfully submitted,

Rick Fenton Robert J. Matson CPA
Superintendent of Schools Treasurer )
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Mr. Donald Frazier Member
Mrs. Donna Smeal Member
Mr. Thomas Herbster Member
Administrati
Mr. Rick Fenton Superintendent

Dr. Douglas A. Sebring
Dr. Cheryl Dubsky
Robert J. Matson CPA
Mr. Leonard Frick
Mr. Gary Novak
Mr. William Burkhardt

- XXiv -

Assistant Superintendent
Assistant Superintendent
Treasurer
Director of Business Service
Director of Personnel
Director of Pupil Services



SUBLY 0 101940

- XXV -

1edioul 93R00asy 3 IechouL] ajerc0ssy 3
[edoud JresEsy siedisui uejsissy
100403 SN yoous: ubiH
sieduy Aepaws)y ediDUlL 004G SIPPIN redioulsd 100405 UH
labeuey| LOURIIUMUWOT)
|
somiag paog :
10 6p=g JoRupoo) SING
1 i
uoleLOdsuRI |
P Kosnsdng JaDeuep omEaN
| |
WAL § SpUNGIG B 2308 AJUNUALED
simbotoydisy dSV 10 JXawadng sBuipyng Jo Josiwadng jo )opang
MRS pdng SFNAIRG BAN0SBY 830wa5 WEIB0LY 10§ S30MITS S53UIRNG B30T VRNSIMUPY Jof
10 1310 UBWANH 0 J0}IBN] juapuaLRdng EsIEYY J0 1050340 wapURLLAdngG ESSY
WapUELedng LT
Heyg [etiopeziuebip
Jo13s|a jooyds A0 paiswio YMoN

LonEINR J0 preog




o T—

Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

North Olmsted City School
District, Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1998

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

ﬂ%zm

President

oz o G

Executive Director
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This Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented to

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998

Upon recommendation of the Association’s Panel of Review which has judged that the Report
substantiaily conforms to pnnciples and standards of ASBO's Certificate of Excellence Program

e 2 Bl Lo 4 s

President Executive Director
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- L Lausche Building. 12th Floor
STATE OF OHIO ) 615 Superior Avenue, N. W.
QOFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cleveland, Ohio 44113

s o i Telephone (216) 787-3665
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE (800) 6262257

R . Facsimile {216) 787-3361
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

North Olmsted City School District
24100 Palm Drive
North Qimsted, Chio 44070

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying generai-purpose financial statements of the North Olmsted City School
District, Cuyahoga County, (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of
contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financiai statements based on our audit.

We conducted ouraudit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicabie
to financiat audits contained in Governrnent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a iast
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the North Oimsted City School District, Cuyahoga County, as of June 30, 1995, and the
resutts of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 15, 1999
on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our fests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. ' ’

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of
the District, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and
schedules listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjecied to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented, in all materiai respecis, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the statistical section of this report and therefore express no opinion
thereon.

JIM R
Auditor o

December 15, 1999
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NORTH OLMSTED CIYY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

JUNE 30, 1999
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
Assets and ather debits )
Equity in pooled cash s "11,393,2422 $ 504,710 $ - s 574,016
Restricted cash : 223,073 - - -
Receivables, net of allowance
Taxes, current 25,304,737 - - 1,044,096
Taxes, delinguent 1,019,033 - - 42,046
Accounts and other - - - -
Due from other governments 105,140 53,982 - -
Interfund receivable 351,423 - - 5,000
Inventories and supplies 147,907 - - -
Fixed assets - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - - - -
Amount to be provided for
retirement of general abligaticns - - - -
Total assets and other debits s 38,544,555 § 558,692 $ - s 1,665,158

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY TOTALS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES FUND TYPE ACCOUNT GROUPS {MEMORANDUM ONLY)
INTERNAL TRUST  GENERAL GENERAL LONG- S
ENTERPRISE SERVICE AND AGENCY FIXED ASSETE TERM DEEBT 1999 1998

23,044 % 60,174 % 61,160 % - 4 - $ 12,616,346 S 9,574,383

- - - - 223,073 223,073

- - - - - 26,343,833 25,695,512

- - - - - - 1,061,079 4T3, 4id

562 7,333 - - - 7,895 12,155
38,425 - - - - 197,547 444,419

- - - - - 356,423 184,017
41,484 - - . o= - 189,391 153,652
499,947 - - 25,356,984 - 25,856,931 24,930,476
(389,835) - - - - - (389,835) (381,469)

- - Rt - 4,103,849 4,103,849 4,587,621
213,827 s 67,507 $ 61,160 % 25,355,984 $ 4,103,849 % 70,571,532 s 65,897,283
{Continued)
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
JUKRE 30, 1999

(CONTINUED)
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
tiabilities, fund equity and other credits
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable s 686,450 $ 9,076 % - s 55,237
Accrued liabilities
Salaries, wages and benefits 3,485,470 43,079 - -
bue to students - - - -
Due to other governments 736,279 : 8,788 - -
Interfund payable 5,000 7,069 - 250,000
peferred revenue
Taxes 23,752,863 - - 966,572
[ntergovernmental 82,658 - - -
Notes payable - - - -
Capitalized lease obligations - - - -
Compensated absences 45,986 - - -
Total Liabilities 28,794,706 £8,012 - 1,271,809

Fund equity and other credits
Investment in generzl fixed assets - - - -
Comtributed capital - - - -
Retained earnings

Unreserved - - - ~
Fund balance
Reserved for medical claims 400,000 - - -
Reserved for budget stabilization 223,073 - - -
Reserved for inventories 147,907 - - -
Reserved for property taxes 2,570,907 - - 119,570
Reserved for encumbrances 643,903 97,276 - 420,692
Unreserved 5,764,059 393,404 - (146,913)
Total fund equity and other credits 9,749,849 490,680 - 393,349
Total Liabilities, fund equity and other credits 8 = 38,544,555 $ 558,692 % - $ 1,665,158

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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FIDUCIARY TOTALS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES FUND TYPE ACCOUNT GROUPS (HEME‘RANDUM ONLY )
INTERNAL TRUST GENERAL GENERAL LONG-
ENTERPRISE SERVICE AND AGENCY FIXED ASSETS TERM DEBT ) 1999 ) 1?93
1,729 % 4,452 % 2,569 % -8 A 759,513 $ 321,163
48,289 - - - - 3,576,838 3,458,354
- - - 52,352 - - 52,352 51,300
81,166 - - ' - 268,786 1,095,019 964,399
88,354 - 6,000 - - 356,423 184,017
- - - - - - - - T 24,719,435 24,210,328
19,119 - - - - 101,777 241,761
- - - - 547,322 547,322 677,000
- - - - 229,784 229,784 340,971
11,400 - - - 3,057,957 3,115,343 3,384,047
250,057 4,452 50,921 - 4,103,849 34,553,806 33,833,340
- - - 25,356,984 - 25,356,984 24,439,566
433,217 - . : - - 433,217 433,217
(469, 647) 63,055 - - - (406,592) (317,973)
- - - - - 400,000 -
- - - - - 225,073 223,073
- - - - - 147,907 122,267
- - - - - 2,690,477 1,958,628
- - - - : - 1,161,871 598,875
- - 239 - - &,010,789 4,606,290
(36,430) 63,055 - 239 25,355,984 ) T 36,017,726 32,063,943
213,627 % 67,507 § 61,160 % 25,356,984 § 4,103,849 % 70,571,552 % 65,897,283
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBIMNED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
Revenues
Taexes $ 25,245,354 $ - $ - $ 1,051,316
Juition and fees 496,914 - - -
Interest 723,425 5,903 77,302 11,638
Property rentals 47,902 - - -
Intergovernmental 9,586,604 1,075,335 - 248,703
EXtracurricular - 488,527 - -
other 67,862 26,542 - -
Total revenues 36,168,061 1,596,307 77,302 1,331,657
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Regular 17,038,015 409,062 - 347
Special 2,909,209 412,142 - -
Vocationat 579,111 38,409 - -
Adult/continuing 19,060 29,335 - -
Dther instruction 539,765 - - -
Supporting services
Pupil 1,861,866 47,181 - -
Instructional staff 1,168,332 10,072 - -
Roard of education 155,873 - - -
Administration 2,165,973 10,316 - -
Fiscal services 702,775 - - -
Business 280,172 660 - -
Qperation and maintenance 2,891,050 1,288 - -
Pupil transportation 1,210,791 400 - -
Central services 641,489 - - 6,434
Operation of non-instructional
Comunity services 20,474 357,186 - -
Extragurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented 147,583 - - -
Sports oriented 577,380 72,329 - -
Capital outlay 78,826 78,399 - 1,255,328
Debt service
Principal 111,187 - 129,678 -
Interest 14,553 - 107,378 -
Total expenditures 33,113,484 1,466,759 237,054 1,262,109
Excess tdeficiency} of revenues over
expendi tures 3,054,577 129,548 ¢159,754) 49,548
Other financing sources {(uUses) -
QOperating transfers-in 76 35,000 159, 754 -
Operating transfers-out (269, 754) {75) - -
Total other fimancing sources (uses) - (269,678) 34,924 159,754 -
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over B
expenditures and other sources (Uses) 2,784,899 164,472 - 49,548
Fund balances, beginning of year 6,858,740 326,208 - 323,801
Increase in reserve for inventories 25,640 - - -
Residual equity transfer-in 80,570 - - -
Fund balances, end of year H 9,749,849 3% 490,680 % - % 393,349

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FEDUCTARY TOTALS

FUND TYPE {MEMORANDUM ONLY)
EXPENDABLE
TRUST 1999 1998

$ 26,296,670 % 25,834,991

- 496,914 682,765
- 818,268 737,345
- 47,902 61,403
- 10,930, 642 10,574, 697
- 488,527 353, 664
- 94,404 409,977
- 39,173,327 38,754,842
- 17,447,424 15,865,930
- 3,321,351 3,025,067
- 617,520 718,451
- 48,395 53,056
- 539, 765 372,810
- 1,909,027 1,911,440
145 1,178,549 1,161,626
- 155,873 183,336
- 2,176,289 2,148,822
- 702,775 658,072
- 280,832 239,966
- 2,892,338 2,972,227
- 1,211,191 1,189,912
- 647,923 793,603
- 377,660 394,187
- 147,583 134,089
- 649, 709 633,586
- 1,412,553 1,760,255
- 240,865 415,968
- 121,931 179,407
145 36,079,553 34,811,810

¢145) 3,093,774 3,943,032
- 194,830 432,79
- - 877,000
- - 327,630
- (269, 830) (480, 303)
- (75,0003 957,121

(145) 3,018,774 4,900, 153
384 7,509, 133 2,606,610
- 25,640 2,370
- 80,570

239 % 10,634 117 % 7,509,133
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NORTH GLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPERDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (HON-GAAP BASIS) —
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

GENERAL
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes s 24,545,000 % 24,555,370 10,370
Tuition and fees 664,874 &53, 146 (11,728)
Interest 710,000 723,425 13,425
Property rentals 47,425 47,902 477
Intergovernmental 2,558,000 9,578,740 20,740
Extracurricular - - -
Other 96,000 93,853 (2,742)
Totai revenues 35,621,299 15,652,641 31,142
Expenditures
Current
Instruction ] N —
Regular 17,528,237 16,998,245 529,992
special 2,915,311 2,885,762 49,549
Vocational 615,646 &01,314 14,332
Adult/continuing 20,000 18,720 1,280
other instruction 1,055,375 960,458 94,917
Supperting services
Pupil 1,918,536 1,876,077 42,459
Instructional staff 1,285,651 1,204,908 80,743
Board of education 207,902 190,068 17,834
Administration 2,235,460 2,173,602 61,858
fiscal services 784,550 774,629 7,921
Business 316,154 289,500 26,254
Operation and maintenance 3,250,085 2,905,755 344,330
Pupil transportation 1,362,599 1,264,135 98,464
central services 849,894 802,383 47,511
Operation of non-instructicnal
community services 24,850 20,474 4,376
Extracurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented 154,500 147,583 6,917
Sports oriented 607,800 590,017 17,783
Capital outlay 150,251 133,845 16,406
Debt service .
Principal - - -
[nterast - - - -
Total expenditures 35,282,801 33,817,875 1,464,926
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 338,498 1,834,566 1,496,068
Other financing sources (uses) .
Operating transfers-in 85,000 80,685 {4,315
Proceeds from sale of notes - - -
Advances-in 85,000 84,963 (18]
Refund prior year expenditure - . 694 694
Advances-out {257,369} (257,369) -
Operating transfers-out (271,354) (271,354) -
Total other fimancing sources {uses) ¢358,723) (362,381) (3,658}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over N
expenditures and other sources (uses) (20,225%) 1,472,185 1,492,410
Prior year encumbrances 591,335 591,335 -
Furd balances, beginning of year 8,222,443 T B,222,443 -
Fund balances, end of year 3 B, 793,553 3 10,285,963 § 1,492,410

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SPECIAL REVENUE DEBT SERVICE

Variance Variance

Favorable Favarable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
- s - s - 8 - -5 - s -

5,903 5,903 - 77,302 77,302 -
1,043,031 1,043,031 - - - -
495,970 488,527 (7,443) - = -
21,039 28,482 7,443 - - -
1,565,943 1,565,943 - 77,302 77,302 -
548,726 426,383 122,343 - - -
416,988 400,527 16,461 - - -
41,127 39,500 1,627 - - -
56,951 30,693 356,258 - - -
54,926 50,531 4,395 - - ) -
10,775 10,072 703 - - -
19,503 10,171 9,332 : - - -
26,682 640 26,022 - - -
1,291 1,288 3 - - -
400 400 - - - -
412,322 412,547 (225) - - -
78,434 70,812 7,622 © - - - -
124,553 98,662 25,891 - - -

. - - 2,043,678 2,043,678 -

- - - 107,378 107,378 -
1,802,678 1,552,246 259,432 2,151,056 2,151,056 -
(236,735 13,697 250,432 (2,073,754} (2,073,754) -
35,000 35,000 - 159, 754 - 159,754 -

- - - 1,914,000 1,914,000 -
7,069 7.069 - - - -
{18,763) ¢18,763) - - -
(76) (76> - - -
23,230 23,230 - 2,075,754 2,073,754 e -
(213,505 35,927 250,432 - - -
24,668 24,668 - - - -
335,763 336,763 T ) ' - - T -
147,926 % 398,358 % 250,432 % Too- s - s ' -

(Continued)
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS) -
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999
(CONTINUED)

CAPITAL PROJECTS

variance
Favorable

Revenues
Taxes
Tuition and fees
Interest
Property rentals
intergoverrmental
Extracurricular
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
[nstruction
Regular
Special
Vacational
Adult/continuing
Other instruction
Supperting services
Pupil
Instructional staff
Board of education
Administration
Fiscal services
Business
Operation and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Central services
Cperation of non-instructional
Community services
Extracurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented
Sports oriented
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendi tures

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in
Proceeds from sale of notes
Advances-in
Refund prior year expenditure
Advances-out
Operating transfers-out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver
expenditures and other scurces (uses)
Prior year encumbrances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Budget

Actual

(Unfavorable)

$

1,028,621 8
9,400
267,686

1,009,451
11,638
268,703

(19,170
2,238
1,017

1,305,707

1,289,792

(15,915)

1,776,017

1,689,987

1,796,017

1,708,180

(490,310)

(418,388)

- 250,000

- £51,000)

250,000
(51,0003

199,000

t291,3103
258,782
58,4694

219,388
258,782
58, 694

71,922

26,166 %

98,088 s

71,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXPENDABLE TRUST

TOTALS
(MEMORANDUM ONLY}

Variance " Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
- s . - s 2,573,621 § 25,564,821 $ (8,800)
) - 864,874 653,146 (11,728)
. . . 802,605 818,268 15,663
- . - 47,425 47,902 477
- - - 10,868,717 10,890,474 21,757
- - - 495,970 488,527 7, 4463)
- - - 117,03 122,340 5,301
; - - 38,570,25t 38,585,478 15,227
. - - 18,091,963 17,436,387 655,576
- - - - 3,332,299 3,266,289 66,010
. - - 656,773 640,814 15,959
- - - 86,951 49,413 37,538
. - . 1,055,375 960,458 9,917
. - . 1,973,462 1,926,608 46,854
276 145 131 1,296,702 1,215,125 81,577
. - - 207,902 150,068 17,834
- - - 2,254,963 2,183,773 71,190
- - - 784,550 774,629 9,921
- - - 342,836 290,560 52,276
- - - 3,251,376 2,907,043 344,333
. - - 1,362,999 1,264,535 98,464
- - - 856, 89 808,817 48,077
- . - 437,172 433,021 4,151
- . . 154,500 147,583 6,917
) } - 686,234 . 60,829 25,405
- - - 2,048,821 1,922,454 126,327
- - - 2,043,678 2,043,678 .
- - - 107,378 107,378 -
276 s 131 41,032,828 39,229,502 1,803,326
(276 €145) 131 (2,462,577 (844,024) 1,818,553
. - - 279,754 275,439 (4,315)
- - - 1,914,000 1,914,000 .
- - - 342,069 342,032 (37
. - . - 694 94
- - . (327,132) (327,132) .
- - - (271,430 (271,430) .
- - . 1,937,261 1,933,603 (3,658)
(276) ¢145) 131 (525,316) 1,289,579 1,814,855
. - . 874,785 876,785 -
384 384 . 8,618,284 8,618,284 -
108 s 239 131 % 8,967,753 8 10,782,648 8 1,814,895
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Operating revenues
Tuition and fems
Sales
Classrcom materials and fees
Other

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Contractual service
Materials and supplies
Other expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (expensas)
interest
Intergovernmental
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Total nonoperating revenues {(expenses)
{Loss) before operating transfers
Operating transfers
Operating transfers-in
Net income (Loss)
Retained earnings, beginning of year
Resfdual equity transfer-out

Retained earnings, end of year

NORTH OLMSTED CITY $SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

TOTALS
{MEMORANDUM ONLY)
INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE 1999 1998

$ 53,478 S - 08 53,478 $ 52,581
89%, 585 52,397 951,982 931,996
- - - 4,506
150 52,333 62,483 72,708

53,213 114,730 1,067,943 1,152,191
420,336 - 420,336 432,329
156,438 - 156,438 157,959
652,844 81,849 734,693 713,865
70,599 53,337 123,936 171,630
- 16,554 16,554 5,694
14,208 - 14,208 13,368
1,314,425 151, 740 1,466,165 1,494,845
(361,212) (37,010) (398,222) (342,654)

1,055 - 1,085 -
314,819 - 314,819 303,090

7an - (701> -
315,173 - 315,173 303,090
(46,039) (37,010) (83,049) (39,564)
60,000 15,000 75,000 47,509
13,961 (22,010 (8,045) 7,945
(403, 038) 85,065 (317,973) ¢325,918)

(80,570) - (80,570) -
s (469,647 ¢ 63,055 § (406,592) $ 317,973)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

TOTALS
(MEMORANDUM ONLY)
INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE 1999 1998
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating (loss) . s (3561,212) § 37,010) 8 (398,222) 8 (342,654)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 14,208 - 14,208 13,358
Donated commodities used 83,416 - 65,416 69,088
Changes in net assets (increase)
decrease and liabilities
increase {decrease):
Receivables, accounts and other (562> 1,169 607 30,231
bue from other governments (38,425) - {38,425} -
Inventories and supplies 10,0993 - (10,099 2,580
Accounts and contracts payable g20 4,452 5,272 (1,798
Accrued salaries and benefits payable {5,734)> - (5,734) (?,575)
Due to other governments ¢12,8563 - ¢12,856) (1,862)
Interfund payable (15,000) - ¢15,000) 15,000
Deferred revenue 4,274 - 4,274 (3,387)
Compensated absences (149} - (1497 591
Total adjustments 1,893 5,621 7.5t 114,236
Net cash {used in) operating activities ' (359,319) {31,389 (90,708} (228,418)
Cash flows from non-capital
financing activities
Intergovernmental revenue 249,403 - 249,403 234,002
Operating transfers-in _ .. £0,000 15,000 75,000 47,509
Residuzal equity transfer-out (80,570) - (80,570) -
Net cash provided by non-capital
financing activities . 228,833 15,000 243,833 281,511
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities - ) i
Acquisition of fixed assets (15,580) - (15,580} -
Net cash (used in) capital and related ) . )
financing activities .£15,580) - (15,5803 -
Cash flows from investing activities
interest income 1,05% - - 1,055 -
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,055 - 1,055 -
Ne: increase {(decrease} in cash
and cash equivalents (145,0%1) (16,3893 (161,400 53,093
Equity in pooled cash and
equivalents, beginning af year 168,055 76,563 244,618 191,525
Equity in pooled cagh and .
equivalents, end of year $ 23,044 % 60,174 % 83.218 s 244,618
Non-cash transactions: P
Disposal of fixed assets, net book value 3 701 3 - s 701 s -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fimancial statements.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEKSES, AND CHANGES IN

Operating revenues
Juition and fees
Sales
Classroom materials and fees
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Instruction
Adult and continuing education
Materials and supplies
Food service cperations
salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
purchased services
Materizals ard supplies
Instructional support services
Purchased services
Transportation services
purchased services
Materials and supplies
Other expenditures
Capital ocutlay

Total operating expenses

Excess (deficiency) of operating
revenues over operating expenses

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest
Intergovernmentat
Advances-out

Tatal nonoperating revenues {expenses)

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
expenses before operating transfers

Operating transfers
Operating transfers-in
Operating transfers-out

Total operating transfers

Net excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses

Prior year encumbrances
Fund balances, beginning of year

fund balances, end of year

FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS) -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

ENTERPRISE
- ﬁériance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

53,476 535,478 S 2
882,256 899,023 16,767
10,118 - €10.118)

150 150 -
946,000 952,651 6,651
69,861 54, 494 15,367
10,118 - 10,118
411,197 410,346 851
164,117 162,648 1,469
623,209 622,686 523
8,320 8,221 9%
16,500 16,303 197
1,303,322 1,274,698 28,624
(357,322) (322,047 35,275
700 1,085 355
238,100 210,978 (27,122

(15,000) (15,800) -
223,800 197,033 €26,767)
(133,522) €125,014) 8,508
50,000 40,000 10,000

(80,5610) (80,610) .
¢3¢,610) © (20,610) 10,000
(164,132) “(145,624) 18,508

12,417 12,411 -

155, 644 155, 644 .
3,923 s 22,431 s 18,508

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERNAL SERVICE

TOTALS
(MEMORANDUM ONLY)

Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Buciget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
- s - - % 53,476 $ 53,478 % 2
52,397 52,397 - 934,653 951,420 16,767
. - - 10,118 - €10,118)
63,502 £3,502 - 43,652 63,652 -
115,899 115,899 . 1,061,899 1,068,550 6,651
- - - 49,861 54,494 15,367
- - - 10,118 - 10,118
- - - 411,197 410,346 851
- - - 164,117 162,648 1,469
- - - 423,209 622,686 523
- - - 8,320 8,221 o9
1,487 1,120 357 1,487 1,120 367
87,299 80,729 6,570 87,299 80,729 6,570
81,995 47,898 34,097 81,995 47,898 34,097
16,554 16,554 - 16,354 16,554 -
14,966 14,818 148 31,466 3,121 345
202,301 161,119 41,182 1,505,623 1,435,817 £9,806
(86,402 {45,220) 41,182 (443,724) (367,267) 76,457
- - - - 700 1,055 . 355
- - - 238,100 210,978 (27,122)
- - - - {15,000) (15,000) -
- - - 223,800 197,033 (26,767
(Bb,402) (45,220 41,182 (219,924} €170,234) 49,690
15,9000 15,000 - . 45,000 75,000 10,000
- - - (80,670) (80,4610) -
15,000 15,000 - ¢15,610) {5,610} 10,000
(71,4023 (30,220% 41,182 (235,534) (175,B44) 59,690
- - - 12,411 12,411 -
76,563 76,563 - 232,207 232,207 -
5,161 % 46,343 % 41,182 % 9,084 s 68,774 % 59,690
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 1 1 IONS CRE TH

The North Olmsted City School District (the District) was established for the
purpose of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the
constitution and laws of the State of Ohio. .The District is a city school
districet as definmed by Section 3311.03 of the Ohioc Revised Code. The District
operates under an elected Board of Education consisting of five members and is
responsible for providing public education to residents of the District. Average
daily membership on, or as of, October 1, 1998 was 4,983. The District employs
385 certificated and 243 non-certificated employees.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units and
other organizations that are included to ensure that the financial statements of
the District are mot misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District.
For the North Olmsted City Scheoel District, this includes general coperations,
food service, and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is
financially accountable. The District is financially accountable for an
organization if the District. appoints a voting majority of the organizations'

governing board and, 1) the District is able to significantly influence the
programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or 2) the
District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organizations'’

resources; the District 1is 1ega11y obligated or has otherwise assumed the
responsibility to finance the deficits of or provided financial support to the
organization; or the District is obligated for the debt of the organization.
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the
District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the
levying of taxes. The District has no component units.

The District is assoclated with the Lake Erie Educational Computer Association,
the Polaris Career Center, the North Clmsted City Schools Education Foundation,
and the Ohio Schoel Council Association which are considered to be jointly
governed organizations. The District also participates in a public risk pool
managed by the Ohio Schools Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating
Program. These organizations and their relationships with the Distriet are
described in more detail in Notes 18 and 19 to these financial statements.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAYL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING DPOLICIES -

A, B ) o —
The accounts of the District . .are maintained on the basis of fund and ‘account
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operation
of each fund is accounted for within a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund eguity, revenues and expenditures,
or expenses, as appropriate. The following fund typés and account groups are
used by the District: B : : . SR o

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the
School District. are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the
District's expendable financial resources and the related current liabilities
{except those accounted for in proprietary funds and trust funds) are accounted
for through govermmental funds. The measurement focus is based upon current
financial resources. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements
present Iincreases (reverwes and other financing sources) and decreases
{expenditures and other financing uses) of "available spendable resources" during
a period. Governmental funds include the following fund types:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the
School District and is used to account for all finmancial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts, or
major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. e

Debt Servic¢e Iund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest and related costs. . .

Capital Projects Funds - The Capital Projects Funds are used to account
for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of

major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds
or trust funds). } o o
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NORTH OIMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) B
A. - AGCO ING jnued
eta und

Proprietary Funds are used to account for the District’s ongoing activities which
are similar te those often found in the private sector. Proprietary fund
measurement focus is based upon the flow of economic resources. All assets and
all liabilities {(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity
are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (net total assets) is segregated
into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary funds
include the following fund types:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a)
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreclation) of providing goods or services te the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or, (b) where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses lncurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability or other purposes.

Ipternal Service Funds - Intermnal Service Funds are used to account for
the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to
other departments or agencies of the District, or to other govermments, on
a cost-reimbursement basis.

iduci es
Fiduciary fund types are used to account for -assets held by the District in a

trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others. Fiduclary fund types are
as follows: ’ T

Expendable Trust Funds - are accounted for in essentially the same manner
as governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of

accounting.
cvy_ Funds - are custodial in nature and do not present results of
operations or have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for

using the modified accrual basis of accounting. These funds are used to

account for assets that the govermment holds for others in an agency
capacity, -

18
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NORTH OILMSTED CITY SCHQOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 GNIF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued
A. F ATION - ACCOUNTING (continued
ce Groups
To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and

those of general govermment, and between long-term liabilitles related to
specific funds and those of a general nature, the following account groups are

used:
General Fixed Assets Account Group - used to account for all fixed assets
acquired principally for general purposes other than those accounted for
in proprietary or trust funds
Gen ong-term Debt Account Group - used to account for the outstanding
principal balances of general obligation debt and other long- term debt not
reported in the proprietary funds.

B. ACC NG

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made. The modified accrual
basis of accounting is followed fof govermmental, agency and expendable trust
funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of financial position and
changes in financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources)
rather than upon net income determination. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting: :

1. Only current assets and current liabilities are generally included
on the balance sheet.

2. Operating statements present Increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases {expenditures and other flnanc1ng uses) in
net current assels. _

3. BRevenues are recognized when they become both measurable and
available to finance expenditures for the current period, which for
the School District is sixty days after year end.

a) Revenue accrued at the end of the year included rent, tuirion,,
interest, student fees, a portion of personsl property taxes,
and a portion of state funds for expenditure reimbursements.

b) Property taxes measurable as of June 30, 1999, and delinquent
property taxes, whose availability is Iindeterminable, and
which are intended to finance fiscal 2000 operations, have
been recorded as deferred revenue.
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WORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. B F ING (continued

4. Fxpenditures are recognized in the period in which the fund
liability is incurred with the follewing exceptions: general lomg
term obligation principal and interest are Téported only when due;
the current costs of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave are
reported in the period in which they will be liquidated with
available financial resources rather than in the period earned by
employees.

The proprietary funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses are recognized in the
period incurred. As permitted, the Board of Education has elected to apply only
applicable FASE Statements and Intérpretations issued before November 30, 1989
in its accounting and reporting practices for its proprletary operations, unless
those proncuncements conflict or contradict GASE prencuncements.

c. DG co B

The School District is required by state statute to adopt an annual appropriated

budget for all govermmental and proprietary funds. The specific timetable

follows: }

1. Prior to January 15, the Treasurer submits to the Board of Education

a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing for all funds. Public hearings are publicized
and conducted to obtain taxpayers comments. The purpose of this
budget document is to reflect the need for existing (or increased)
tax rates. ’ s

2.. By no later than January 20, the Board of Education adopted budget
is filed with the Cuyahoga County Budget Commission for rate
determination. ) )

3. On or about April 1, the Board of Education accepts, by formal

resolution, the tax rates as determined by the Budget Commission and
receives the Commission’s Certificate of Estimated Resources which
states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the
School District must revise its budget so that total contemplated
expenditures from any fund during the ensuing vear will not exceed
the amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated Resources.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 20, 1999

c inued

The revised budget then serves as a basis for the appropriation
measure. On or about July 1, the Certificate is amended to include
any unencumbered cash balances from the preceding year. The
Certificate may be further amended during the year if projected
increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the District
Treasurer. The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect
the amounts set Fforth in the final amended certificate issuned for
1999, . -

Cn or before July 1, the annual appropriation resolution 1s legally
enacted by the Board of Education, The legal level . of
appropriations is at the fund and object level of expenditures for
the General Fund and at the fund level for all other funds.
Budgetary control used for management purposes is maintained at the
fund, function and object level. Agency type funds have only total
receipts and expenditures as their budget. Resolution
appropriations by fund must be within the estimated resources as
certified by the County Budget Commission and the total of
expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed the appropriation
totals. Management may revise budget amounts within an individual
fund so long as the legal level of control is not exceeded.

Appropriation amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by
the Board of Education throughout the year by supplemental
appropriations. = All supplemental. appropriations were legally
enacted by the Board of Education during 1999 and none were
significant.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end.  Encumbered
appropriations are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and
need not be reappropriated. Expenditures plus encumbrances may not
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999 ' - . -

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conptinued)

C. G G ontinued

While reporting financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund
balance/retained earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP basis), the budgetary basis, as provided by law, is based upon
accounting for transactions on a basis of cagh receipts, disbursements, and
encumbrances. Accordingly, the "Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (non-GAAP basis) - All
Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds" and the "Combined Statement
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (non-GAAP
basis) - All Proprietary Fund Types" are presented on the budgetary basis to
provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget and to
demonstrate compliance with State statute. The major differences between the
budget basis and the GAAP basis are that:

1. Revenues are recorded when received (budget basis) rather than when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid or encumbered (budget
basis) rather than when the liability is incurred (GAAP basis).

The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the year from
the budget basis to the GAAP basis for the governmmental funds Ffollow:

Ezcess ici eve] A

expenditures and other sources (uses)

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Fund Funds . Fund Funds
Budget basis $ 1,472,185 % 36,927 5 - $ (219,388)
Adjustments, increase ) ) : )
{decrease) : ) ]
Revenue accruals 515,620 30,364 - 41,865
Expenditure accruals 704 391 85,487 1,914,000 446,071

Other sources (uses) - 92,703 11..694 (1.914,000) ___ (199.00Q)
GAAP basis, as reported §__2.784 899 o 164 472 S - $ £9.2548
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NORTH OIMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT - - -
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (contipnued)

The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the year from
the budget basis to the GAAP basis for the proprietary funds follow:

Ex defici A4
gggenses g]]d o :hg: SQE:QQ ﬁ } g §§§ 1
Enterprise Internal
— Funds Service Fundg
Budget basis $ (145,624) S {30,220)
Adjustments, increase . Lo
(decrease) ) R
Revenue accruals : 104,403 {1,169)
Expense accruals : . 69,350 9,379
Depreciation (14.208) -

GAAP basis as reported 5 13,961 $ (22,010
D. ENCUMBRANGCES . . - : -

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of monles are recorded in order to reserve that
portion of the applicable appropriaticmn, is employed as an extension of formal
budgetary control. Encumbrances are reported as a reservation of fund balance
in all governmental funds.

E. ¢CASH AND INVESTMENTS T

Cash rzceived by the School District is depesited in one central bank account
with individual fund balance integrity maintained through District records.
Monies for all funds are maintained in this account or temporarily transferred
to the State Treasurer’'s investment pool {(STAR 0Ohio) or other short term
investments. Under existing Chic statutes, interest .earnings are allocated to
funds based on average monthly cash balances. Interest income earned for the
year ended June 30, 1999 totalled $ 819,323, - o

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows and for presentation on the

combined balance sheet, investments with a maturity of three months or less are
considered to be cash equivalents. ) L N
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 Y SIGNTF c ING POL S ontinued

F. RESTRICIED CASH S

Restricted cash in the general fund represents cash and cash equivalents set
aside to establish a budget stabilization reserve. This reserve is required by
State statute and can be used only after receiving approval from the State. A
fund balance reserve has also been established.

G. INVENTORY

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in,
first-out method (FIFO) and are determined by physical count. Inventories in
goverrmmental funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost
of inventory items is recognized as an expendliture on acquisition (purchase
method). Reported inventories in govermmental funds are equally offset by a
reservation of fund balance indicating they are unavailable for appropriation.

H. FIXED ASSETS

era ixed ts Acc t G L

General fixed assets are capitalized at cost {or estimated historical cost) and
updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the year in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair
market value as of the date received. The District follows the policy of not
capitalizing assets with a cost of less than $250. No depreciation is recognized
for assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Interest incurred during
construction is not capitalized on general fixed assets. The District does not
possess any infrastructure.

Proprietary Funds

Fixed assets in the proprietary funds are stated at historical cost (or estimated
historical cost) and updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the
year. Contributed fixed assets are recorded at their fair market value as of the
date donated. Depreciation has been provided, where appropriate, on a straight-
line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Use ife
Buildings 45 years
Building Improvements 20 years
Equipment 10 years
Vehicles , 5 years

24



.
! t

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHQOQL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNITICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (continued) .
I. INTERFUND IRANSACTIONS L=

During the course of normal operations, the School District has numerous
transactions between funds. The most significant include:

1. Transfers of resources from one fund to another fund tﬁrdugh which
resources expended are recorded as operating transfers.

2. Reimbursements from one fund to another are treated as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and a reduction in
expenditures/expenses In the reimbursed fund.

3. Short-term interfund loans are reflected as interfund receivable and
interfund payable.

4, Residual equity transfers represent non-recurring or non-routine
permanent transfers of the equity balance of funds no longer being
used. -

An analysis of interfund transactions is presented in Note 6.

Vacation benefits are accrued as a 1liability as the benefits are earned if the
employee's rights to receive compensation are atfributable to services already
rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for
the benefits through paid time off or some other means. Sick leave benefits are
accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability is based on an
estimate of the amount of accumulated sick leave that will be paid as a
termination benefit.

In the govermmental funds compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated
with expendable available resources are reported as an expenditure and fund
liability in the fund that will pay for them. The remainder of the compensated
absences liability is reported in the Genmeral Long-term Debt Account Group. In
the proprietary funds, compensated absences adre recorded as an expense and
liability of the fund that will pay for them.

K. FUND BALANGE RESERVES

Reserved fund balances represent the portion of fund equity that is legally
segregated for specific future use or not available for current appropriations.
Fund equity reserves are established for encumbrances, inventories of material
and supplies, property taxes, medical claims and for budget stabilization. The
reserve for property taxes represeints property taxes recognized as revenue under
generally accepted accounting principles but not available for appreopriations
under State statutes. Unreserved fund balances represents that portion of fund
equity which is available for appropriation in future periods.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contipued)
L. N ST NTS

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned (Memorandum Only) to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in
these columns do not present financlal position, results of operations, or cash
flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. ¥Nor is such
data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made
in the aggregation of this data.

M. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. ’

NOTE 3

Fund balances at June 30, 1999 include a deficit fund equity balance of § 10,473
in the Title VIB Fund. This deficit results from reflecting expenditures in
accordance with the modified accrual basis which are substantially larger than
the amounts recognized on the budget basis. Retained earnings at June 30, 1999
include a deficit balance in the Food Service Fund of § 514,026. This deficit
results from reflecting expenses in accordance with the accrual basis which are
substantially larger than the amounts recognized on the budget basis. The
District, in accordance with its budget basis, will appropriate such expenditures
and expenses from resources of the subsequent year.

NOTE 4 STATUTORY RESERVES _
The District is required by state law to set aside certain general fund revenue
amounts, as defined, into wvarious reserves. During the £fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, the reserve activity (cash basis) was as follows:

Reserves
Capital Budget

— Textbook _Maintenance Stabilization _ Total
Balance, 7/1/98 $ - $ - $ 233,073 § 233,073
Required set-aside 576,461 576,461 I - 1,152,922
Cffset credits {71,944 (576 ,481) B - (648,405)

Qualifying - o - '
expenditures (5Q&,517) - - (204, 517)
Balance, 6/30/99 __§ .. - S : - £ . 233.073 § £233,073

Expenditures for textbooks and capital activity during the year were $ 955,396

and $910,436, respectively, which exceeded the required set-aside and the reserve
balance. T :
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1899

NOTE 3 NVEST s
A. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
State statutes classify monles held by the District into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary te meet current demands on the
treasury. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the District
Treasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including
negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit
accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the District's Board of Education has
identified as mnot required for use within the current two year period of
designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by
certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of
designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts including, but not
limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies
which are not needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end
of the current period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be
evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from
the date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts including passbook
accounts. :

Interim monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

1. United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation
or security issued by the United States treasury or any other
obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United
States: )

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued
by any federal government agency or instrumentality, including but
not limited teo, the Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal
Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation, Govermment National Mortgage Association, and Student
Loan Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shall be

direct issuances of federal government agencies or
instrumentalities; '”
3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above

provided that the market wvalue of the securities subject to the
repurchase agreement must exceed the principal wvalue of the
agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and
that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE S DEPQSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
A.  LEGAL REQUIREMENTS (continued)
4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Chio;
5. No-ioad money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of

obligations described in division (1) or (2) of this section and
repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that
investments in securities described in this division are made only
through eligible institutions;

6. The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio)};

7. Certain bankers' acceptance and commercial paper notes for a period
not to exceed one hundred eighty days in an amocunt not to exceed
twenty-£five percent of the interim monies avallable for Investment
at any one time; and

8. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in
either of the two highest rating classifications by at least two
nationally recognized rating agencies.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase
agreements and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the
purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited.
An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless
matched to a specific obligation of debt of the District, and must be purchased
with the expectation that it will be held until maturity. o

Protection of the District’s deposits 1is provided by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, by eligible securities pledged by the financial
institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the
treasurer by the financial Institution or by a single collateral pocl established
by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public monies
deposited with the institutien. o

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment
for investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the
investments to the treasurer or, 1f the securities are not represented by a

certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

The District maintains a cash and investment pool used by various funds, Each
fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as
"Equity in pocled cash.”
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 5 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
B. DEPOSITS

The District maintains a control disbursement system for its main checking
account. Under this system the actual cash on deposit at the bank is limited to
the dollar amount of checks that will be cashed the following day. AL
June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $ (448,015) and
the bank balance was $ 92,153, all of which was covered by federal depository
insurance. - - .

C. INVESTMENTS

Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed
by the entity at year-end., GCategory 1 Includes investments that are ingured or
ragistered or for which the securitlies are held by the Distriect. Category 2
includes uninsured and unregistered investments which are held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent In the District’s name. Category 3
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held
by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the District's
name. Investment in STAR Ohioc, the State Treasurer's Investment Pool, is not
classified by degree of credit risk since it is not evidenced by securities that
exist in physical or book entry form.

Category i o .

Carrying Fair

1 2 i 3 . value value
Commercial S . o7
paper notes $ - $ 1,099,315 § - § 1,099,315 § 1,099,315

U.S. Government

securities - - 3,930,740 3,930,740 3,930,740
State Treasurer’s Iinvestment poocl 8§.257.379 8,257.379

13,287,434 §$ 13,287,434
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 6 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund balances at June 30, 1999, consist of the following individual £und

receivables and payables:

30

Recejvable Pavable
General Fund 5 351,423 'S 5,000
Special Revenue Funds e
Adult Bagic Education - 7,069
Capital Projects Funds
Permanent Improvement 5,000 250,000
Enterprise Funds
Food Service - T - 88,354
Agency Funds
Student Activities o= = 6,000
Total all funds $ 356,423 $ 356,423
Interfund transfers at June 30, 1999 were as follows:
Operating Operating
Iransfers-in =
General Fund s 76 5 269,754
Special Revenue Funds -
Public Support Service - 76
Athletic 35,000 -
Debt Service Fund 159,754 -
Enterprise Funds
Food Service 60,000 -
Internal Service Funds o
Regional Transit 15.000 - -
Total all funds $ 269,830 $ 269,830
Residual Residual
Equity Equity
Iran : Irapsfers-out
General Fund s 80,570 $ -
Enterprise Funds
Uniform School Supplies - - 80.570
S B0 570 $ 80 570
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT ) 7 7
NOTES TO FINANCIAIL, STATEMENTS . S o
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 7 PROPERTY TAXES .

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis. Second half
distributions occur in a new fiscal year. Property taxes include amounts levied
against all real, public utility and tangible personal property (used in a
business) located in the District. Real property taxes are levied after April 1
on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Public
utility property taxes attached as & lien on December 31 of the prior year, were
levied April 1 and are collected with real property taxes. Assessed values for
real property taxes are established by State law at 35 percent of appraised
market value. All property is required to be revalued every. six years. Public
utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at 88 percent
of true wvalue (with certain exceptions) and on real property at 35 percent of
true value. Tangible personal property taxes are levied after April 1 on the
value listed as of December 31 of the current year. Tangible personal property
assessments are 25 percent of true value. : -

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually,
payment is due December 31; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due
December 31 with the remainder payable by June 20. Under certain circumstances,
State statute permits alternate payment dates to be established.

Tangible personal property taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due
September 20. Single county taxpayers may pay annually or semi-annually. If
paid anmually, payment is due April 30; if paid semi-anmually, the first payment
is due April 30, with the remainder payable by September 20.

The District receives property taxes from Cuyahoga County. The County Auditor
periodically advances to the District its portion of the taxes collected.
Second-half real property tax payments collected by the County by June 30, 1999
are available to finance fiscal year 2000 operations. The amount available to
be advanced can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued property taxes receivable represents delinquent taxes outstanding and
real property, tangible personal property and public utility property taxes which
became measurable as of June 30, 19938. Although total property tax collections
for the next fiscal year are measurable, only the amount available as an advance
at June 30 is intended to fimance current fiscal year operations. The receivable
is therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue for that portion not intended
to finance current year operations. The amount available as an advance at
June 30, 1999 was $ 2,570,907 in the General Fund and $ 119,570 in the Permanent
Improvements Fund.
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NORTH QLMSTED CITY SCHOCL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1998

NOTE 7 PROPERTY TAXES (comtinued)

The assessed values upon which fiscal year 1999 taxes were collected are:

1998 Second - ) 1999 First -
Half {ollections Half Collections
ANQURt i Amount ]
Agricultural Residential o
Real Estate ) 464,240,450 64.57% $ 469,037,630 64.19%
Other (Commercial) 185,680,370 25.83 190,173,860 26.03
Public Utility Tangible 23,804,710 73.31 - 24,629,710 3.37
Tangible Persomal Property 45,200,585 6.29 46,864,374 6.41
Total Assessed Valuation 7 926 115 1 Q% 705,574 00 . 00%
Tax Rate per $1,000 of ) o o
Assessed Valuation: : . 69.1 N . _69.1

NOTE 8 RECEIVABLES

Current taxes uncollectible have been established at .8% based on the County
Auditor’'s experience. Delinguent taxes uncollectible have been established at
42.0% based on historical trends and the County Auditor’'s experience. All
intergovernmental receivables are assumed to be collectible in full due to the
stable financial condition of state programs and current year guarantee of
federal programs. All other receivables are anticipated to be fully collectible.

At June 30, 1999, net taxes receivable consisted of the following:

Gross Allowance for Net
Receivableg Uncollectible Receivables

GENERAL o

Taxes - current $ 25,508,807 5 (204,070) § 25,304,737
Taxes - delinguent == 1,756,953 (737,920) "1,019,033
APT PRGJIECTS o o )

Taxes - current . 1,052,516 . .. {8,420) 1,044,096
Taxes - delingquent 72,493 (30,447 42,046
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NORTH OLMSTED GITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 9 FIXED ASSETS - S e
A. GENERAL FIXED ASSEIS -

The following is a summary of the changes In the general fixed asset account
group during the fiscal year: . ,

Balance Balance
June 30, 1998 = _Addiriops  Reductlons June 30, 1999
Land and
improvements 5 1,639,594 $ - s 5,483 8 1,634,111
Buildings and . - o ‘ ’
improvements 15,543,618 324,962 82,412 . 15,786,168
Furniture and - T T C )
equipment 5,174,458 713,758 142,%41 5,745,275
Vehicles o 2.081 89¢ 162.018 . 52.484 2.191.430
Total $ 24,439 366 200,738 $_.283.320 § 25 356,984

B. PROPRIETARY FIXED ASSETS - - —

The following is a sgummary of the proprietary fund type fixed assets at
June 30, 199%: .. . B IR - - o - - -
Enterprise

—  Fupds

Buildings and improvements N $ 167,975
Furniture and equipment T 313,972
Vehicles 18,000
499,947

less accumulated deprecilation _(389,835)
Net fixed assets . 5 - A10. 112
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NORTH OQLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 10 CAPITAL LEASES -

The District is obligated under certain leases accounted for as capital leases.
The leased assets and related obligations are accounted for in the General Fixed
Assets Account Group and the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, respectively.
Assets under capital leases totaled § 608,945 at June 30, 1999,

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under capital
leases, together with the net present value of the minimum lease payments as of
June 30, 1999, -

YTear -
Ending Amount
2000 $ 97,%44
2001 97,944
2002 __ 48,973
Total minimum lease payments 244,861
Less amount representing interest 15,077
Present value of minimum lease payments 9. 784

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DERT

Changes in general long-term debt are as follows:

Balance Balance

Jupne 30, 1998 Inciease 3] e une 9
Due to other governments $ 248,884 § 268,786 § 248,884 8 268,786
Notes payable _ 677,000 129,678 547,322
Capital leases .. T .340D,971 - .111,187 . 229,784
Compensated absences 3.320.766 106,886 ~ 363,695 3,057,957

S 4,587,621 § 375,672 9 839 444 S 4,103,849

Due to other govermments recorded as general long-term debt consists of pension
obligations payable that will not be paid with current available financial
resources.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TCO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 12 NOTES PAYABLE : - —

Notes payable outstanding at year end consisted of:

Rate of Issue Maturity Balance _
School bus acquisition 5.000% - 6-1-98 4-4-06 S .189,000
Energy conservation “5,982% 11-5-97 . 12-1-02 : 358,322
$ 257,322

Debt service requirements to retlre notes payable outstanding at June 30, 1999
consisted of: - )

Year

Endi Principal I T 1

2000 $ 136,675  § 24,491 S 161,166
2001 143,346 17,528 160,874
2002 151,301 10,226 161,527
2003 - 27,000 . . 5,800 32,800
2004 . 28,000 __ 7,500 35,500
2005-2006 _ £1.000 1.600 £2.600

$ 547,322 § 67045 § 614,467

NOTE 13 OPERATING LEASES

The District is obligated under certain leases accoutited for as operating leases.
Operating leases do not give rise teo property rlghts or lease obligations, and
therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the
District's. account groups. During 1999, expenditures for operating leases
totalled § 104,257. - -

The following is a schedule of future minimur rental payments required under
operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in
excess of one year as of June 30, 19%2. — o

Year
Ending . Amoyunt
2000 $ 104,743
2001 94,284
2002 12.228 )
Total minimum lease payments 211 255
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 14 SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The School District maintains enterprise funds which are intended to be self-
supporting through user fees charged for services. Fimancial segment information
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 is presented below.

Operating revenues

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Contractual service
Materials and supplies
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating {loss)
Nonoperating rewvenue
Cperating transfers-in
Net income (loss)

Other information
Net working

capital {(deficiency)

Fixed asset additions
Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity (deficit).

Total

36

Food Adult Enterprise
ervice ation | Funds

899.585 & 53.628 953,213
404,248 16,088 420,336
149,531 6,907 156,438
622,686 30,158 652,844
68,855 1,744 70,599
. 9.868 4,340 14,208
1,255,188 59.237 . __ 1,314,425
(355,603) (5,609) 361.212)
315,173 ___ - 315,173
60,000 - 60,000

$ 19,570 §__ (5.609) 3 96
. .5.(150,98¢) 25,862 § (133.142)
] = £..12,080 o __ 12,580
5 164,046 49,581 S§__ 213.627
R la213 S L2484  $ 250,057
$_(83.467) $ 47,037 5 _ (36,430
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOQL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 15 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
A. SCHOOL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEN

The District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System (SERS), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS provides
retirement and disability benefits, anmual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend
benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 3309 of the Chio Revised Code.

The School Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available, stand-alone
report that includes financial stateménts and required supplementary information.

That report may be obtained by writing to the SERS, 45 North Fourth Street,
GColumbus, Ohic 43215 or by calling (614)222-5853.

Plan members are required to contribute 9% of their amnual covered salary and the
District is reguired to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
current rate is 14% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
plan members and employers are established and may be amended, up to statutory
maximum amounts, by the SERS’ Retirement Board. The DPistrict’s reguired
contributions to SERS for the years ended June 30, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were
$ 689,100, $ 652,600, and $ 634,800, respectively. The full amount has been
contributed for 1998 and 1997. For 1399, 45% has been contributed with the
remainder being reported as a fund liability and within the general long term
debt account group.

B. STATE TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM S

The District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS),
a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system administered
by the State Teachers Retirement Board. STRS provides basic retirement benefits,
disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible service credit
to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the
Ohio Revised Code..  STRS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statments and regquired supplementary information for STRS.
That report may be obtained by writing te STRS, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus,
Ohio 43215-3771 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.3% of their annual covered salary and
the District is reguired to contribute 14%. Contribution rates are established
by STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory
maximum rates of 10% . for members and 14% for employers. The Distriect's
contribution to STRS for the years ended June 30, 1993, 1998, and 1997 were
$ 2,602,000, $ 2,475,500, and $ 2,515,500, respectively. The full. amount has
been contributed for 1998 and 1997. For 1999, B3% has been contributed with the
remainder being reported as a fund liability.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 16 PQSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A, SCHOQL EMPLOYEES RETTREMENT SYSTEM

The Ohio Revised Code glves SERS the discretionary autherity to provide
postretirement health care to retirees and their dependents. Coverage 1s made
available to service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying service
credit, disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after
August 1, 1989, with less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a
portion of their premium for health care. The portion is based on years of
service up to a maximum of 75% of the premium.

After the allocation for basic benefits, the remainder of the employer’'s 14%
contribution is allocated to providing health care benefits. TFor 1998 (the
latest information avajilable), the allocation rate is 4.98%. In addition, SERS
levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to 14% of the difference
between a minimum pay and the member'’s pay, pro-rated for partial service credit.
For fiscal 1998, the minimur pay has been established at § 12,400. The
surcharge, added to the unallocated portion of the 14X employer contribution
rate, provides for maintenance of the asset target level for the health care
fund.

Health care benefits are financed on & pay-as-you-go basis, The target level for
the health care reserve is 125% of annual health care expenses. Expenses for
health care at June 30, 1998 were $ 111,900,375 and the target level was $ 139.9
million. At June 30, 1998, the Retirement System's net assets available for
payment of health care benefits was § 160.3 million. The number of participants
receiving health care benefits is approximately 50,000. The portion of the
District's contributions that were used to fund postemployment benefits amounted
to $ 326,700.

B. T CH R ENT SYSTEM

The State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) provides comprehensive health care
benefirs to retirees and their dependents. Coverage includes hospitalization,
physician fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of monthly Medicare
premiums. All benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for
health care coverage. Pursuant to the Revised Code (R.C.), the State Teachers
Retirement Board (the board) has discretionary authority over how much, if any,
of the health care costs will be gbsorbed by STRS. Most benefit reciplents pay
a portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium.

The R.C. grants authority to STRS to provide health care coverage to benefit
recipients, spouses and dependents. By Ohio law, the cost of the coverage pald
from STRS funds shall be included in the employer contribution rate, currently
14% of covered payroll.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 (the latest information available), the
Retirement BEoard allocated employer contributions equal to 3.5% of covered
payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund from which health care benefits are paid.
The balance in the Health Care Reserve Fund was § 2,156 million at June 30, 1998,
For the year ended June 30, 1998, net health care costs paid by STRS were
$ 219,224,000, There were 91,399 eligible benefit recipients.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999 . , o

NOTE 17 CONTINGENCIES L

The District received financial assistance:fronlnumeroug;federal, state and local
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these
programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the
grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencles. Any disallowed
claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund
or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such
disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall
financial position of the District at June 30, 1999.

NOTE 18 RISK MANAGEMENT
A. PROPERTY AND LIABILITY

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage
to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and
natural disasters. During fiscal year 1999, the School District contracted with
Nationwlide Insurance Company for property insurance. Professional liability is
protected by Natiomwide Insurance Company with a § 2 million per ccecurrence and
a $ 5 million aggregate limit with a $ 1 million supplemental umbrella policy.
Vehicles are covered by Nationwide Insurance Company. Automobile liability has
a $ 3 million combined single limit of liability with a $ 1 million supplemental
umbrella policy. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in
any of the past years. Performance bonds of $20,000 are malntained for the
Superintendent, Business Manager, and Board President by Natiomwide Insurance
Company and the Treasurer for § 100,000 from Ohic Casualty. _ The District
provides life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to its
employees. Life insurance is covered through the Ohio Schools Council’s Group
Life Insurance.

B. WO !

The District participated in the Ohio Schocl Board Association Workers'
Compensation Group Rating Program {GRP), an insurance purchasing pool, The
intent of the GRP is to achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the District
by virtue of its grouping and representation with other participants in the GRP.

The workers' compensation experlence of the participating school districts is
calculated as one experience and a common premium rate is applied to all school
districts in the GRP. Each participant pays its workers’ compensation premium
te the State based on the rate for the GRP rather than {its individual rate.
Total savings are then calculated and each participant’s individual performance
is compared to the overall savings percentage of the GRP.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 18 RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

B. WQRKERS’ COMPENSATION (continued)

A participant will then either receive money from or be requlired to contribute
to the "equity pooling fund.® This "equity pooling" arrangement insures that
each participant shares equally In the overall performance of the GRP.
Parcicipation In the GRF Is limited to school districts that can meet the GRP’s
selection criteria. The f£irm of Gates McDonald & Co., prov1des administrative,
cost control and actuarial services to the GRP.

C. OYE C BENEFITS

The District provides employee medical, surglcal, prescription drug and dental
benefits through a self-insurance program administered by Medical Mutual of Ohio.
The District limits its liability for medical claims by maintaining a 110%
aggregate stop-loss threshold of § 2.0 million.

The claim liability of § 218,024 reported at June 30, 1999 was estimated by
Medical Mutual of Ohio and is based on the requirements of Governmental Standards
Board Statement No. 10, which reguires that a liability for unpaid claims costs,
including estimates of costs related to incurred but not reported claims, be
reported. The estimate was not affeéected by incremental claim adjustment expenses
and does not include other allocated or unallocated claim adjustment expenses,.
Changes in the balance of claims liability during the year ended June 30, 1999
and 1998 are summarized below. Incurred claims and claims payments are not
segregated between current and prlor years claims due to the lmpractlcablllty of
obtaining such information.

June 30 9 June 30,7998

Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 254,000 $ 265,000
Incurred claims 1,992,52¢% 1,568,376
Claims payments . (2.028.505) _(1.579.37¢8)

Unpaid claims, end of year - $ 218 .024 g 254,000

NOTE 19 JQINTLY GOVERNED QRGANIZATIONS

A, LARE ERIE EDUCATION COMPUTER ASSOCIATION

The Lake Erie Educational Computer Association (LEECA) is a jointly govermed

organization comprised of thirty school districts. The jointly governed
organization was formed to provide data processing services for accounting,
administrative and instructional functions of member districts. Each of the

governments of these districts supports LEECA based upon a per pupil charge
dependent upon the software packages utilized. The LEECA assembly consists of
a superintendent or designated representative from each participating district
and a representative from the fiscal agent.
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NOTE 19 JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS (continued)
A. LAKE ERIE EDUCATION COMPUTER ASSQCIATION (continued)

LEECA is governed by a board of directors chosen from the general membership of
the LEECA assembly. The board of directors consists of a representative from the
fiscal agent, the chairman of each operating committee, and at least one assembly
member -from each county from which participating districts are located.
Financial information can be obtained by contacting the Treasurer at the
Educational Service Center of Lorain County, which serves as fiscal agent,
located at 18853 Lake Avenue, Elyria, Ohio 44035. . During the year ended
June 30, 1999, the Distriet paid § 37,127 to LEECA. '

B. POLARIS CAREER CENTER .

The Polaris Career Center is a separate body politic and corporate, established
by the Ohio Revised Code to provide for the vocational and speclal needs of the
students. The Board of Education consists of representatives from the board of
each participating school district. The Board is responsible for approving its
own budgets, appointing personnel, and accounting and finance related activities,
North Olmsted City School District students may attend the vocational school,
Each school district’s control is limited to its representation on the Board.
Financial information can be obtained by contacting the Polaris Career Center,
7285 Q1d Gak Blvd., Middleburg Heights, Ohic 44130.

C. NORTH OLMSTEDR CITY SCHOOLS EDUCATION FOUNDATION

The North Clmsted City Schools Education Foundation (Foundation) is a jointly
governed organization established by the Ohio Revised Code to support and enhance
educational opportunities for the youth of the North Olmsted Community. The
trustees of the Foundation consist of Five ex officio trustees and up to fifteen
members sélected by a nominating committee appointed by the ex officioc trustees.
The ex officio trustees are composed of the following individuals: the
Superintendent of the North Olmsted City School District, a member of the North
Olmsted Board of Education, a member of the North Olmsted PTA Council, a member
of the Noxth Olmsted City Schoels’ Financial Advisory Board, and a member of the
Community Education Advisory Board. All trustees are voting members. The
Foundation is responsible for approving its own budgets, appointing persommel,
creation of committees, and accounting and financial related activities.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TQ FINANCIAI. STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 19 ORGANIZAT 5 (continued)
D. 10 SCHOOLS CIL

The Ohic Schools Council (Council) is a jointly governed organization among
eighty-three school districts. The Council was formed to offer supplies and
services at the lowest possible cost to the member districts. Each district
supports the Council by paying an annual participation fee for the services
provided. The Council’s Board consists of seven superintendents of the_
participating districts whose term rotates every year. The degree of control
exercised by any school district is limited to its representation on the Board.

The North Olmsted City Schools participates in the Councils electric purchase
program which was implemented during fiscal year 1998. The program allows school
districts to purchase electricity at reduced rates for a period of eight years
through Energy Acquisition Corporation (Corporation), a non-profit corporation
with a self-appointing board of trustees. The Corporation issued § 119,140,000
of notes to prepurchase eight vyears of electricity from Cleveland Electrie
Illuminating (CEI). The participating school districts are not obligated in any
manner for this debr. If a participating school district terminates their
agreement during the eight year period, they are required to repay the savings
to CEI and CEI will refund the remaining prepayment related to that participant
to Energy Acquisition Corporation.

The Neorth Olmsted City Schools also participates in the Council’s group life
insurance, natural gas, operating supplies, and school bus acquisition programs.
Financial information can be obtained by contacting Joseph Lesak, Executive
Director at the Chio Schools Gouncil at 155 Center Read, Bedford, COhioc 44146-
2738. ' - -

NOTE 20 QHIQ SCHOQL FUNDING PTLAN

On March 24, 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain
portions of the Chio school funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the
effect of its ruling for one year to allow the State's legislature to design a
plan to remedy the perceived defects in that system. Declared unconstitutional
was the State’s "school foundation program"”, which provides significant amounts
of monetary support to the District. During fiscal year ended June 30, 1899, rthe
District recelved § 6,645,933 of school foundation support for its general fund.

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numerous pileces of legislation have been passed
by the State legislature in an attempt to address the issues identified by the
Court. The Court of Common Pleas in Perry Courity has reviewed the new laws and,
in a decision issued on February 26, 199%, determined they are not sufficiently
responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the "thorough and efficient"
clause of the Ohio Constitution. The State has appealed the decision made by the
Court of Common Pleas of the Chic Supreme Court. As of the date of these
financial statements, the Ohlio Supreme Court has not rendered an opinion on this
issue. The decision of the Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has been stayed
by the Ohio Supreme Court, and, as such, school districts are still operating
under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declared unconstitutional.

As of the date of these financial statements, the District is unable to determine
what effect, 1f any, this ongoing litigation will have on its future State
funding under this program and on its financial operations.
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NoTES T8 FINAREIar sTATEMENTE
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 21 YEAR 2000 ISOUE

The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data
processing systems and other equipment that may adversely affect the government's
operations. .

The North Olmsted City School District has completed an inventory of computer
systems and other equipment necessary to conducting District operations and has
identified  such systems as being financial reporting, payroll and employee
benefits, and educational statistics reporting through the State’s Education
Management and Information System (EMIS).

The District uses the State of Ohio Uniform School Accounting System software for
its financilal reporting, and the State of Ohio Uniform Staff Payroll system
software for its payroll and employee benefits. The State of Ohio is respomsible
for remediating these systems.

The District utilizes Medical Mutual of Ohio to administer the District’'s self-
insured medical, surgical, prescription drug and dental benefit program. Medical
Mutual of Ohio is responsible for rémediating this system.

The State of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of money to the District in the
form of "Foundation" and federal and state grant payments. Further, the State
processes a significant amount of fipancial and non-financial information about
the District through EMIS. The State is responsible for remediating these
systems. -

Cuyahoga County collects real estate and personal property taxes for distribution
to the District. Cuyahoga County 1is responsible for remediating 1ts tax
collection system.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the.Year 2000 issue, its effects and the
success of related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the
year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that the District is or will
be year 2000 ready, that the District’s remediation efforts will be successful
in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the District does business will
be year 2000 ready.

NOTE 22 SUBSEQUENT EVENT .
On July 1, 1999 the Districz issued $ 1.65 million in tax anticipation notes

through the Treasurer of the State of Ohie’s Schoel District Cash Flow Financing
Program. The notes are scheduled to mature on June 30, 2000.
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GENERAL IUND

The General Fund 1s used to account for all activities of the School District not
included in other specified funds. This Includes, but is not limited to, general

instruction, pupil services, operation and maintenance of buildings and grounds,
pupil transportation, and the adeministration of S5School District functiens.
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WORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 199% AND JUNE 30, 1998

1999 1998
Assets and other debits
Equity in pooled cash s 11,393,242 8 8,550,705
Restricted cash 223,073 223,073
Receivables, net of allowance
Taxes, current 25,304,737 24,676,089
Taxes, delinquent 1,019,033 454 661
Accounts and other - 3,653
Due from other governments 105,140 420,802
Interfund receivable 351,423 179,017
Inventories and supplies 147,907 122,267
Total assets and other debits 1 38,544,555 % 34,670,267
Liabilities, fund equity and other credits
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable s &85,450 $ 290,494
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 3,485,470 3,372,595
Due to other governments 736,279 614,963
Interfund payable 5,000 5,000
Deferred revenue
Taxes 23,752,843 23,249,827
intergovernmental 82,4658 226,916
Compensated absences 45,986 51,732
Total liabilities 28,794, TO6 27,811,527
Fund equity and other credits
Fund balances
Reserved for medical claims 400,000 -
Reserved for budget stabiiization 223,073 223,073
Reserved for inventories 147,907 122,267
Reserved for property taxes 2,570,907 1,880,923
Reserved for encumbrances 643,903 361,761
Unreserved 5,764,059 4,290,716
Total fund balances 9,743,849 6,858,740
Total liabilities and fund balances % 38,544,555 % 34,670,267
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
ARD CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 AND JUNE 30, 1998

1999 1998
Revenues
Taxes 25,245,354 & 24,813,394
Tuition and fees 496 914 482,765
Interest 723,425 613,270
Property rentals 47,902 61,403
Intergovernmentat 9,586,604 9,243,646
Other 67,862 391,981
Total revenues 36,148,061 35,806,439
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Regular 17,038,015 15,355,668
Special 2,909,209 2,635,742
Vocaticnal 579,111 692,218
Adult/econtinuing 19,060 16,134
Other instruction 539,765 3r2.810
Supporting services
Pupil 1,861,866 1,836,245
Instructional staff 1,168,332 1,157,305
Board of education 155,873 183,336
Administration 2,165,973 2,138,965
Fiscal services 702,775 658,072
Business 280,172 239,966
Cperation and maintenance 2,891,050 2,970,069
Pupil transpertation 1,210,791 1,189,912
Central services 641,489 782,740
Operation of non-instructional
Community services 20,474 20,747
Extracurricular activities
Academic and subject oriented 147,583 134,089
Sports oriented 577,380 572,022
Capital outlay 78,826 903,928
Debt service
Principal 111,187 415,968
interest 14,553 41,684
Total expenditures 33,113,484 31,504,620
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 3,054 577 4,301,819
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in 75 127,038
Capital lease ~ 327,630
Qperating transfers-out (269,754 (118,823)
Total other financing sources {(uses) {269,678 335,845
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) 2,784,899 4,637,664
Fund balances, beginning of year 5,858,740 2,218,706
increase in reserve for inventaries 25,640 2,370
Residual equity transfer-in 80,570 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 9,749,849 % 6,858,740
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NORTH OLWMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED (UNE 30, 1999

GENERAL FUND

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues )
Taxes 24,545,000 % 24,555,370 $ 10,370
Tuition and fees 564,874 653,146 €11,728)
Interest 710,000 723,425 13,425
Property rentals 47,425 47,902 &7
Intergovernmental %,558,000 9,578,740 20,740
Other 96,000 93,858 €2,142)
Total revenues 35,621,299 35,652,441 3,42
Expenditures
Current
instruction
Regular
Salaries 12,718,300 12,712,155 6,145
Benefits 3,303,000 3,195,064 107,936
Purchased services 107, 192 106,928 264
Materials and supplies 1,349,745 $50,332 399,413
Other 50,000 33,766 16,234
Total regular 17,528,237 16,998,245 529,992
Special
Salaries 2,304,900 2,275,801 29,099
Benefits 589,000 570,175 18,825
Purchased services 1,489 1,489 -
Materials and supplies 19,922 18,297 1,623
Total special 2,915,311 2,865,782 49,549
Vocaticnal .
Salaries 466,400 463,700 2,700
Benefits 122,500 116,504 5,996
Purchased services 2,629 589 2,040
Materials and supplies 24,117 20,521 3,596
Total vocational 815,846 601,314 14,332
Adult/continuing .
Salaries 8,000 C 745 549
Benefits 2,500 1,775 725
Purchased services 9,500 @494 )
Tetal adult/continuing 20,000 18,720 1,280
Other instruction
Salaries 28,100 27,993 107
Benefits 10,000 7,016 2,984
Purchased services 1,017,275 925,449 91,826
Total other instruction 1,055,375 960;458 94,917
Total instruction 22,134,569 21,444,499 694,070
(Continued)
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WORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES ~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED)

Variance
Favarable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Supporting services
Pupit
Salaries 1,322,700 1,301,282 21,438
Benefits 340,000 323,237 16,743
Purchased services 223,830 22%,395 435
Materials and supplies 30,906 28,183 2,723
Other 1,100 - 1,100
Total pupil 1,918,536 1,876,077 42,459
instructional staff - -
Salaries 793,617 784,180 9,437
Benefits 194,000 189,764 4,236
Purchased services 103,729 96,795 6,934
Materials and supplies 119,346 79,979 39,3467
Other 72,959 54,190 18,759
Total instructicnal staff 1,285,651 1,204,908 80,743
Board of education - -
Salaries 15,000 10,884 4,120
Benefits 2,000 1,517 483
Purchased services 178,902 168,726 10,176
Materials and supplies 2,000 - 2,000
Other 10,000 8,945 1,055
Total board of education 207,902 190,058 17,834
Administration o
Salaries 1,704,600 1,675,641 28,959
Benefits 421,000 413,972 7,028
Purchased services 61,225 43,891 17,334
Materials and supplies 33,635 31,940 1,695
Cther 15,000 8,158 6,842
Total administration 2,235,460 2,173,602 61,858
Fiscal services 7
Salaries 216,400 215,770 &30
Benefits 131,000 126,795 4,205
purchased services 8,000 7.362 638
Materials and supplies 3,500 6,722 1,778
Other 420,650 417,980 2,670
Total fiscal services 784,550 7 774,629 9,921
Business - )
Salaries 78,100 77,955 145
Benefits 21,000 19,318 1,682
Purchased services 217,054 192,627 24 427
Total business 316,154 289,900 26,254
) (Continued)
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HORTH OLMSTED CTITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3G, 1999

GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED)

Variance
Favaorable
Budget Actuzl {Unfavorable}
Operation and maintenance
Salaries 1,589,400 1,564,750 24,650
Benefits 379,000 372,700 6,300
Purchased services 1,099,533 818,953 280,570
Materials and supplies 156,252 126,489 29,563
Other 25,900 22,653 3,257
Total operation and maintenance ’ 3,250,085 2,905,755 344,330
Pupil transportation
Salaries 712,600 700,391 12,209
Benefits 168,000 166,823 1,977
Purchased services 283,850 257,800 26,050
Materials and supplies 198,149 139,121 59,028
Total pupil transportation 1,362,599 1,264,135 98,464
Central services
Salaries 331,477 329,448 2,029
Benefits 89,000 79,761 9,239
purchased services 291,225 274,716 16,509
Materials and supplies 127,226 108,832 18,394
Other 10,966 9,626 1,340
Total central services 849,8%4 BO2,383 47,511
Total supporting services 12,210,831 11,481,457 729 374
Operation of non-instructicnal
Community services .
Purchased services 24,830 20,474 4,376
Total community services _ . 24,850 20,474 4,376
Total operation of ton-instructional 24,850 o . 20,474 4,376
Extracurricular activities -
Academic and subject oriented
Salaries 122,500 118,365 4,135
Senefits 32,000 22,218 2,782
Total academic and subject oriented . . 154,500 147,583 6,917
Sparts oriented
Salaries : 475,200 . 462,903 12,297
Benefits 116,000 111,259 4,741
Purchased services 16,600 15,855 745
Total sports oriented 607,800 590,017 17,783
Total extracurricular activities ' 762,300 737,600 24,700
Capital outlay 150,251 133,845 16,406
Total expenditures 35,282,801 33,817,875 1,464,926
{Continued)
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED)

Var%ance
Favorabte
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss over ' o
expenditures 338,498 1,834,566 1,496,068
Other fimancing sources {uses) o o
Operating transfers-in 85,000 80,685 4,315
Advances-in 85,000 84,963 (372
Refund prior year expenditure ' - £94 &94
Advances-out - (257,369) (257,369) -
Operating transfers-out {271,354 (271,354) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (358,723> - (32»2,7381) (3,658)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 7 - :
expenditures and other sources (uses) (20,2252 1,472,185 1,492,410
Prior year encumbrances 591,335 591,335 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 8,222,443 8,222,443 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 8,793,553 § 10,285,563 $ 1,492,410
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS -

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for revenues from specific
sources which legally, or otherwises, are restricted to expenditures for specific
purposes. ' - s

Public Support Service Tund - This fund accounts for school site sales

projects, field trips, assemblies and other activity costs.

Other Grapts Fund - This fund accounts Ffor local gratits received to
enhance educational programs of the District.

Athletic Fund - This fund accounts for gate receipts and other revenues
from athletic events and all costs (except supplemental coaching
contracts) of the District's Athletic Program.

suxiliarv Service Fuypnd - This fund accounts for nmon-public schools within
the school district as provided by state law. Funds are primarily for
educational supplies, materials, and testing.

Professional DRevelopment Grant - This fund provides resources for leocally

developed professional development.

Educagtion M,I.S, Fupnd - This fund accounts for State revenues to support
expenditures for development of a Statewide iInformation system for all
school districts in Ohio. .

Data Compunications Iund - This fund provides support costs for data
communication links to commect a school distriect electronically to the
data acquisition site. ..

School Net Professional Development PFund - This fund accounts for
workstations and training of personnel and for wiring upgrades at the
individual schools.

State Aid - Textbook and Instiuctiop - This fund accounts for the State
revenue recelved te support the purchase of school textbooks and
supplemental instructional materials.

Adult Basic Education - This fund accounts for Federal monies used to
provide programs in reading, writing and math competency for non-diploma
adults. - : :
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Eigephower Math Fund - This fund accounts for Federal monies to Iimprove
the skills of teachers and instruction in learning; and increase the
access of all students to that instruction.

Title VIB Fund - This fund accounts for Federal revenues In support of
program expenditures related to Special Education; e.g. Developmentally
Handicapped.

Title I Fund - This fund accounts for Federal monies to Implement a
variety of programs Iintended to provide supplemental instruction for
children of low income families Tdentified as educationally disadvantaged.

Title VI Fund - This fund accounts for Federal revenues which support the
implementation of a wvariety of programs (drug/alcohol abuse, computer
education) to profit schools within the communicy.

ESL Grapt Fund - This fund accounts for Federal revenues to provide
supplemental instruction-for eligible immigrant children.

- This fund accounts for Federal revenues for
education of students and staff in drug abuse prevention.

Preschoel Fund - This fund accounts for federal monies Supporting programs
for handicapped services for children ages 2-5 to ready them for the
school environment,

Migcellaneous Grants Fund - This fund accounts for a continuous
improvement grant for the development of professional staff and a grant
for school based service learning programs.
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Assets

Equity in pooled cash
pue from other governments

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts pavable
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits
Due to other governments
Interfund payable

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved

Tatal fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

5 o

HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUKE 30, 1999

PUBLIC OTHER AUXILIARY
SUPPORT SERVICE GRANTS ATHLETIC SERVICE

134,853 § 1,625 8 57,505 $ 59,130

134,853 & 11,425 % 57,505 S 59,130

1,462 % - s 3,566 % 4,030

- - - 8,606

- - - 2,130

1,462 - 3,566 14,765

5,209 3,217 12,714 55,100

128,182 8,208 41,225 10,736} -

133,391 11,625 53,939 44,364

134,853 § 11,425 § 57,505 % 59,130
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SCHOOL NET

PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION DATA PROFESSIONAL STATE AID-TEXTBOOK ADULT BASIC
DEVELOPMENT GRANT M.1.S. COMMUNICATIONS DEVELOPMENT AND INSTRUCTION EDUCAT ION
31,401 8 5,010 % 23,982 s 2,100 $ 70,538 % 6,648
- - - - - 5,000
31,401 S 5,010 § 25,982 S 2,100 $ 70,538 % 11,648
- s - s - s - s - s . .
- - - - - 7,069
- - - ' - 7,069
10,900 - - - - 2,970
20,501 5,010 23,982 2,100 70,538 1,609
31,401 5,010 23,082 2,100 70,538 4,579
s 31,401 $ 5,010 8 23,982 % 2,100 $ 70,558 11,648
(Continued)
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Assets

Equity in pooled ecash
bue from other governments

Total assets

Liabitities and fund balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits
Due to other govertments
Interfund payable

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances
Unreserved

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

»
t ]

WORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 1999
{CONTINUED
EISENBOWER
MATH TITLE VIB TITLE 1 TITLE VI
21,014 % 718 % 15,609 % 31,806
- - 43,383 -
21,014 & 71z s 58,992 $ 31,808
- % - 6 3 -
- 5,455 29,018 -
- 5,736 922 -
- 11,191 29,558 -
383 - 1,439 2,521
20,631 10,473} 27,595 25,285
21,0 €10,473) 29,034 31,806
21,016 $ 718§ 58,992 % 31,806
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DRUG FREE MISCELLANEOUS
ESL GRANT SCHODLS PRESCHOOL GRANTS TOTAL

2,948 § 1,458 12,563 16,002 504,716
- 5,500 - - 53982

2,948 S 7,057 $ 12563 8 16,002 558,892
. s . s s - 9,076
- - - - 43,079
- - - - 8 788
- - - - 7,069
- - e - 68,012
19 1,382 .- 1,247 97,276
2,754 5,675 12,563 14,755 393,404
2,948 7,057 12,563 16,002 490,680
2,948 $ 7,057 S 12,563 s 16,002 558,692
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

PUBLILC OTHER AUXILIARY
SUPPORT SERVICE GRANTS ATHLETIC SERVICE
Revenues
Interest 1 - - 5 - L J ' 5,903
Intergovernmental - 12,971 - 343,513
Extracurricular 379,869 - 108,658 -
Other 18,842 - 7,700 -
Total revenues 398,711 12,97 116,353 349,516
Expenditures
turrent
Instruction
Regular 385,404 531 - -
Special - - - -
Vocational - - - -
Adult/continuing - - - -
Supporting services
Pupil - - - -
Instructional staff - 116 o - -
Administration 458 - - -
Business - - - -
Operation and maintenance - - - -

Pupil fransportation - - - -
Operation of non-instructional

Community services - - - - 338,014
Extracurricular activities

Sports oriented - - 72,32% -
Capital outlay 16,333 o - : 37,020 -
Total expenditures 402,195 5,427 109,349 338,014

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures (3,484) 7,544 7,009 11,502
Other firancing sources (uses)

Operating transfers-in - - 35,000 -

Operating transfers-out (763 - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (76> - - NSE;ﬁUU -
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over

expenditures and other sources (uges) (3,580 7,544 42,009 11,502
fund balances, beginning of year 136,951 3,881 11,930 32,8582
Fund balances, end of year s 133,391 ¢ 11,425 $ 53,935 S 44,364
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SCHOOL NET

PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION DATA PROFESSIONAL STATE AID-TEXTBOOK  ADULT BASIC
DEVELOPMENT GRANT M.1.8. COMMUNICAT IONS DEVELOPMENT AND INSTRUCTEICN EDUCATION
. . - s - s - s -
27,307 1,144 11,915 - 71,944 29,074
27,307 16,144 11,915 - 71,964 29,074
6,768 - - - 1,406 -
- - - - - 15,360
- - - - - 7,152
8,295 - - - - 1,661
- - - - - 660
- - - - - 1,288
- 21,197 . - - -
15,063 21,197 - - 1,406 26,121
12,244 (7,053 1,915 . 70,538 2,553
12,244 (7,053) 11,915 . 70,538 2,953
19,157 12,063 12,067 2,100 - 1,626
31,401 5,010 3 23,982 § 2,700 § 70,538 8 4,579
(Continued)
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Revanues
Interest
Intergoevernmental
Extracurricutar
Cther

Total revenues

Expenditures
current
Instruction
Regular
Special
Vocationat
Adult/continuing
Supporting services
Pupit
Instructional staff
Administration
Business
Operation and maintenhance
Pupil transportation
Operation of non-instructional
Community services
Extracurricular activities
Sports oriented
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Operating transfers-in
Operating transfers-out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources {uses)

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

.

{ i

WORTH CLWMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

(CONT INUED)
EISENHOWER
MATH TITLE VIB TITLE 1 TITLE VI

- s - s - s .
15,249 231,896 199,229 21,613
15,249 231,896 199,229 21,613

- 229,049 180, 695 -
13,422 - - 353

- 13,320 3,516 -

. - , 9,000 -
- - 17,147 2,025
13,622 242,369 210,358 2,378
1,627 €10,473) (11,1293 19,235
1,627 ¢10,473) 11,129 19,235
19,387 - 40,163 12,571
21,014 § €10,473) S 29,03. 31,806
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DRUG FREE MISCELLANEOUS
ESL GRANT SCHOOLS PRESCHOOL GRANTS TOTAL
- % - - s - 5,903
2,948 25,659 19,773 48,000 1,075,335
; - - - - 488,527
- - - - 26,542
2,943 25,659 19,773 48,000 1,596,307
- 8,458 - 1,715 409,082
2,398 - - - 412,142
- - - 38,409 38,409
- - - - 29,335
- 11,398 7,210 4,565 47,161
- - - -o—- 10,072
- 858 - - 10,316
- - - - 650
- - - - 1,288
- 400 - - 400
- - - - 357,186
- - - - 72,329
- 3,849 - - 78,399
2,398 24,963 7,210 44,689 1,466,759
550 696 12,563 3,311 129,548
- - - - 35,000
- - - - (76>
- - - - 34,924
550 £96 12,563 3,311 164,472
2,398 6,351 - 12,691 326,208
2,948 % 7,057 12,563 % 16,002 490,680
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHQDL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDEITURES, AND CHANGES [N
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AMD ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

PUBLIC SUPPORT
SERVICE FUND

vVariance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues ,- - ) 7
Extracurricular s 387,312 ¢ 379,859 3% (7,443)
Other 13,339 20,782 7,443
Total revenues 400,651 400,651 -
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Regular ]
Purchased services 256,825 252,778 4,047
Materials and supplies 132,738 123,820 8,918
Other 15,603 14,569 1,034
Total regular 405,166 I 167 13,999
Total instruction 405,166 391,167 13,999
Supporting services
Administration
Materials and supplies &45 313 332
Total administration 645 33 332
Total supporting services 645 313 332
Capital outlay 17,709 16,528 1,181
Total expenditures 423,520 408,008 15,512
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (22,869) (7,357 15,512
other financing sources (uses)

Cperating transfers-out (76 (76) -
Total cther financing sources (uses} [€(-5] (76) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures and other sources {(uses) {22,945 (7,433) 15,512
Prior year encumbrances 10,125 10,125 -
fund balances, beginning of vear 125,490 125,490 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 112,670 % 128,182 $ 15,512
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Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Regular
Materials and supplies
Other
Total regular
Tatal instruction
Supporting services
Instructional staff
Purchased services
Total instructional staff
Total supporting services
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expendi tures

Prior year encumbrances

Fund balances, begimning of year

Fund balances, end of year

v
1

HORTH OLMSTED CITY

I

SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND

ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

OTHER
GRANTS FUND
- "Variaﬁcé
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
s 12,972 8 12,972 8 -
12,972 12,972 -
336 a1 255
10,331 5,731 4,600
10,667 5,812 4,855
10,667 5,812 4,855
116 116 -
16 116 .
e 116 ) .
2,500 2,717 (217>
13,283 8,645 4,638
(311> 4,327 4,638
3,881 3,881 -
s  35mM S 8,208 S 4,638
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

ATHLETIC FUND

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Extracurricular $ 108,658 $ 108,658 % -
Qther 7,700 7,700 -
Total revenues 116,358 116,358 -
Expendi tures
Current
Extracurricular activities
Sports oriented
Purchased services _ 34,437 34,437 -
Materials and supplies 22,797 16,340 6,457
Qther 21,200 20,035 1,165
Total sports oriented 78,434 70,812 7,622
Total extracurricular activities 78,434 70,812 7,622
Capital outlay 54,024 52,107 1,917
Total expenditures 132,458 122,919 ¢,539
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss over
expenditures {16, 700) (6,561) 9,539
Qther financing sources (uses)

Operating transfers-in 35,000 35,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 35,000 35,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over ) ) )

expenditures and other sources (uses) - 18,900 28,439 ¢,53%9
Prior year encumbrances ~ 1,093 1,093 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 11,693 11,693 -
Fund balances, end of vyear : 31,686 % 41,225 % 7 9,539
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES iN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

AUXILIARY
SERVICE FUND
variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Interest 5 5,903 % 5,703 % -
Intergovernmental 343,612 343,612 -
Total revenues 249,515 349,515 -
Expenditures
Current
Operation of non-instructional
Community services
Salaries 55,756 65,756 -
Benefits 35,871 35,8M -
Purchased services 129,018 129,018 -
Materials and supplies 146,587 146,587 -
Other 13,744 13,744 -
Total community services 390,976 390,976 -
Total operation of non-instructional 390,976 390,976 -
Capital outlay 2,264 2,264 -
Total expenditures 393,240 393,240 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (43,725 (43,725} -
Pricr year encumbrances 10,293 10,293 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 33,432 33,432 - .
Fund halances, end of year [ - % - 4 -
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WORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHDOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT GRANT FUND
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
intergovernmental % 27,507 % 27,307 -
Total revenues 27,307 _2'1',307 .
Expenditures T T B
Current
Instruction
Regular
Purchased services 7 37,491 17,668 19,823
Total regular 37,IH -1777,7668 19,823
Total ingtruction - 37,491 17,668 19,823
Supporting services
Instructional staff _
Salaries 7,500 6,822 £78
Benefits 1,473 1,473 -
Total instructional staff 8,973 8,295 678
Total supporting services 8,973 8,295 678
Total expenditures 46,4&; N 25,963 ) 2’0","'1-3;011:-
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over i ) ’
expenditures €19,157) 1,344 20,501
Prior year encunbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 19,157 19,157 -
Fund balances, end of year s - s 20,501 " 20,501
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEPULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

EDUCATION
M.1.S5. FUND
- -Var-iance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues o ) '
Intergovernmental s 14,144 % 14,144 % -
Total revenues 14,144 14,144 -
Expenditures ' ) o
Capital outlay 26,207 21,197 5,010
Tatal expenditures _ 26,207 _21,19777;7 i - 5,010
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over R )
expendi tures (12,063} {7,053 5,010
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 12,063 12,063 -
Fund balances, end of year . s - 5 5,010 % 5,010
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Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues
Expendi tures
Current
Supporting services
Business
Purchased services
Total business
Total supporting services
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendi tures

Prior year encumbrances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

3,

HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

DATA
COMMUNECATIONS FUND
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
s 11,915 $ 11,915 % -
S 11,915 11,915 -
23,982 - 23,982
23,982 - 23,982
23,982 . " 23,982
23,982 - 23,982
¢12,0873 11,915 23,982
12,067 12,067 -
s - s 23,982 % 23,982
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHoOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES —~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .JUNE 30, 1999

SCHOOL NET - PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT FUND

variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures
Current
Supporting services
Business
Purchased services s 2,100 s - 3 2,100
Totat business
Total supporting services
Total expenditures 2,100
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendi tures (2,100) 2,100
Prior year encumbrances
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,100 2,100 -
fund balances, end of 'year s s 2,100
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Revenues
[ntergovernmental

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Regular
Materials and supplies
Total regubar
Total instruction
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Prior year encumbrances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

*y *

RORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON—GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

STATE AID TEXTBOOKS
AND INSTRUCTION FUND

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
s 71,944 § 71,944 § -
71,944 71,944 -
71,944 1,406 70,538
71,944 1,406 70,538
71,944 1,406 70,538
71,944 1,406 70,538
- 70,538 70,533
[ 3 - s 70,538 s 70,538
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ALTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

ADULT BASEC EDUCATION Fund

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental [ 24,074 % 24,074 % -
Totzl revenues 26,074 24,074 -
Expendi tures
Current
Instruction
Adult/continuing
Salaries 12,400 9,920 2,480
Benefits 3,479 3,258 221
Purchased services 850 810 40
Materials and supplies 2,083 2,097 (143
Other 250 250 -
Total adultfcontinuing 19,0862 16,335 2, 72T
Total instruction 19,062 16,335 2,727
Supporting services
Pupil
Salaries 7,263 7,263 -
Benefits 2,468 1,485 983
Other 399 399 -
Total pupil 10,130 9,147 o83
Instructional staff
Salaries 1,661 1,661 -
Benefits 25 - 25
Total instructional staff 1,688 1,661 25
Business
Purchased services 600 650 (&0}
Total business 600 660 (603
Operation and maintenance
Sataries 1,116 1,116 -
Benefits 175 172 3
Total cperation and maintenance 1,291 1,288 3

Total supporting services 13,707 12,756 951
Total expenditures 32,769 29,09 3,678
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expendi tures (8,693) (5,017 3,678
Other fimancing sources (uses) .

Advances-in 7,069 7.06% -
Total other fimancing sources (uses) 7,069 7,069 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures and other sources (uses) . (1,626) 2,052 3,678
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,626 1,626 o -
Fund balances, end of year $ - L 3,678 % 3,678
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) HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON—GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

EISENHOWER
MATH FUND
Variance
Favarable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental % 15,249 $ 15,249 $ -
Total revenues 15,249 15,249 -
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Adult/continuing .
Salaries . ' 14,684 6,488 8,196
Benefits 700 - 700
Purchased services 2,508 5,289 4,219
Materials and supplies P, Thh 2,228 7,516
Total adult/continuing 34,636 14,005 20,631
Total instruction 34,638 14,005 20,631
Total expenditures 34,636 14,005 20,631
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures {19,387 1,244 20,631
Prior year encumbrances 200 200 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 19,187 19,187 -
Fund balances, end of year s - 3 20,631 S 20,631
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HORTH CAMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON—GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

TITLE Vi-B FUND

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues o
Intergovernmental s 251,896 S 231,896 $ -
Total revenues 231,596 -231,896 -
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Special
Salaries 30,300 29,582 718
Purchased services 188,276 188,276 -
Total special 218,576 217,858 718
Total instruction 218,576 217,858 ) 718
Supporting services
Pupit
Purchased services 13,320 13,320 -
Total pupil 13,320 13,320 -
Total supporting services 13,320 13,320 -
Total expenditures 231,895 231,178 718 7
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over -
expendi tures - 718 718
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund batances, beginning of year - - -
Fund balances, end of year s - $ 718 % 718
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL BISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES TN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

TITLE 1 FUKD

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues

Entergovernmental $ 177,523 8 177,523 % -
Total revenues 177,523 177,523 -
Expenditures

current

Instruction
Special
Salaries 161,270 162,724 {1.,454)
Benefits 8,882 10,265 {1,383)
Purchased services 6,182 5,513 669
Materials and supplies 5,071 1,575 3,496
Total special 181,405 180,077 1,328
Total instruction 181,405 180,077 1,328
Supporting services
Pupil
Sataries 5,675 3,242 2,433
Benefits 268 268 -
Tetal pupil 5,943 3,510 2,433
Administration
Salaries 16,000 8,000 8,000
Benefits 2,000 1,000 ' 1,000
Total administratien 18,000 9,000 9,000
Total supporting services 25,943 12,510 11,433
Operation of non-instructional
Community services
Salaries 15,415 17,025 €1,610)
Total community services 15,415 17,025 {1,610}
Total operation of nonm-instructional 15,415 17,025 1,610}

Capital outlay 3,000 - 3,000
Total expenditures 223,763 209,612 14,151
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expendi tures (46,240) (32,089) 14,151
Other financing sources (uses) ’

Advances-out (18,763) (18,763) -
Tatal other financing sources (uses) ¢18,763) (18,763) -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures and other sources {uses) (65, G03) (50,852) 14,151
Prior year encumbrances 56 . 54 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 64,949 64,949 -
Fund balances, end of year s - 3 14,151 8 14,151
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

TITLE VI FUND

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental % 21,613 § 21,613 s -
Total revenues 21,613 21,613 -
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Adult/continuing
Purchased services 7,530 - 7,530
Materials and supplies 5,723 353 5,370
Total adult/continuing 13,253 353 12,900
Total instructicn 13,253 353 12,500
Operation of non-instructional
Caommunity services
Purchased services 420 - 420
Materials and supplies 5,511 4,546 965
Total community services 5,931 4,545 1,385
Totalt operation of non-instructional 5,931 4,546 1,385
Capital outlay 15,000 - 15,000
Total expenditures 34,186 4,899 29,285
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures €12,571) 16,714 29,285
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 12,571 12,571 -
Fund balances, end of year s - 1 - é9;285 $ 29,285
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HORTH OLMSTED ©ITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE' 30, 1999

ESL GRANT FUND

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovermmental % 2,948 % 2,948 % -
Total revenues 2,948 2,948 -
Expenditures
Current
Instruction . — . -
Special .
Salaries 2,650 1,385 1,265
Purchased services “501 - 501
Materials and supplies 2,195 1,207 $88
Total special 5,345 2,592 2,754
Total instructian 5,346 2,592 2,754
Total expenditures . 5,34& 2,592 2,754
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 2,398 356 2,754
Prior year encumbrances - - ’ -
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,398 2,398 -
Fund balances, end of year s - $ 2,754 % 2,754
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES INM
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

DRUG FREE
SCHOOLS FUND
Variancé
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental s 20,061 % 20,061 % -
Total revenues 20,061 20,061 I
Expenditures ) ’
current
Instruction
Regular
Salaries ) 7,458 7,458 -
Purchased seryvices 1,000 1,000 -
Total regular 8,458 8,458 -
Total instruction 8,458 8,458 -
Supporting services
Pupi l
Purchased services . 7,856 7.856 -
Materials and supplies 5,00% 4,924 7
Tatal pupil 12,857 12,780 77
Administration
Salaries 858 858 -
Tetal administration 853 858 -
Pupil transportation
Salaries 400 400 -
Yotal pupil transportation 400 400- -
Total supporting services 14,115 14,03ﬁ ) 77
tapital outlay 3,849 3,849 R
Total expenditures 26,422 ' 26345 7
Excess (deficiency) of rewvenues over o - . 7
expenditures (6,361) (6,284) 77
Prior year encumbrances 1,953 1,953 -
Fund balances, beginning of year &, 408 4,408 -
Fund balances, end of year $ - s - I¢4 S - 77
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 19%¢

PRESCHOOL FUND

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues .

Intergoverrmental $ 19,773 % 12,773 % -
TJotal revenues 19,773 19,773 -
Expend] tures - o 7

Current

Instruction
Special
Purchased services : ) 11,661 - _ 11,661
Total special 11,681 - 11,661
Total instruction 11,661 - ' 11,661
Supparting services
Pupil
Purchased services 8,112 7.210 902
Jotal pupil 8,112 7,210 Q02
Total supporting services 8,112 7,210 902
Total expenditures 19,773 7,210 12,563
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures - 12,563 12,563
Prior year encumbrances - - . -
Fund balances, begimning of year - - h -
Fund balances, end of year $ - L 12,563 % o 12,563
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON—GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

MISCELLANEDUS
GRANTS FUND
V;r‘iiancé
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental | 48,000 % 48,000 $ -
Total revenues 48,000 48,000 -
Expenditures - S
Current
Instructicn
Regular
Salaries ) . 4,300 - 4,300
Benefits 1,080 - 1,080
Purchased services 8,870 1,622 7,248
Materials and supplies 750 250 500
Total regular - 15,000 1,812 13,128
Vacational
Salaries 12,000 12,000 -
Benefits 1,420 440 980
furchased services 15,835 15,852 ¢i7
Materials and suppties 11.872 11,208 664
Total vocational 41,127 29,500 1,627
Total instruction 56,127 41,372 14,755
Supporting services
Pupil
Materiais and supplies 4,564 4,564 -
Total pupit 4,564 4,564 -
Total supporting services 4,564 -4,5-64 -
Total expenditures . 80,691 45,936 14,735
Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver : : -
expenditures {12,691 2,064 14,755
Prior year encumbrances 950 950 -
Fund balances, beginning of vear 11,741% 11,741 -
Fund balances, end of vear ] - s 14,755 % 14,755
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

COMBINED SPECIAL
REVENUE FUNDS

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Interest % 5,903 % 5,903 % -
Intergovernmental 1,043,031 1,043,031 -
Extracurricular 495,970 488,527 (7,443)
Other 21,039 28,482 7,443
Total revenues 1,565,943 1,565,943 -
Expenditures
current
Instruction
Regular
Salaries 11,758 7,458 4,300
Benefits 1,080 - 1,080
pPurchased services 304,186 273,068 31,118
Materials and supplies 205,768 125,557 80,211
Other 25,934 20,300 5,634
Total regular 548,726 7 426,383 122,343
Special
Salaries 194,220 193,691 529
Benefits 8,882 10,265 (1,383
Purchased services 206,620 193,789 12,831
Materials and supplies 7,266 2,782 4,484
Total special 416,988 400,527 16,461
Vocational
Salaries 12,000 12,000 -
Benefits 1,420 440 980
Purchased services 15,835 15,852 (1"
Materials and supplies 11,872 11,208 664
Total vocational 41,127 32,500 1,627
Adul t/continuing
Salaries 27,084 16,408 10,676
Benefits 4,179 3,258 921
Purchased services . 17,888 6,099 11,789
Materials and supplies 17,550 4,678 12,872
Other 250 250 -
Total adult/centinuing © 65,951 30,693 36,258
Total instruction 1,073,792 897,103 176,689

g0
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

COMBINED SPECIAL
REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED}

Variance

Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfaverable)
Supporting services -
Pupil
salaries 12,938 10,505 2,433
Benefits 2,735 1,753 983
Purchased setvices 29,288 28,386 902
Materials and supplies @,565 9,488 7
Other 399 399 -
Total pupil 54,926 50,531 " 4,395
Instructional staff - -
Salaries @, 161 8,483 678
Benefits 1,498 1,473 25
Purchased services 116 16 -
Total instructional staff 10,775 10,072 703
Administration
salaries 16,858 8,858 8,000
Benefits 2,000 1,000 1,000
Materials and supplies 545 313 332
Total administration 19,503 10,171 9,332
Business )
Purchased services 26,682 650 26,022
Total business 26,682 660 26,022
Operation and maintenance ) '
Salaries 1,116 1,116 -
Benefits 175 172 3
Tatal operatien and maintenance 1,291 1,288 3
Pupil transportation
Salaries 400 400 -
Total pupil transportation -400 B '400 -
Total supparting services i13-,5ﬁ - 73,122 40:455
Operation of non-instructional -
Community services
Salaries 81,171 82,781 (1,610)
Benefits 35,871 35,871 -
Purchased services 129,438 129,018 420
Materials and supplies 152,098 151,133 965
other 13,744 13,744 -
Total community services 412,322 412,547 (225)
225y

Total operation of neon-instructional 41é,"!;2_2-- -41.‘7!7,5-47-
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WORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

COMBINED SPECIAL
REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual ({Unfavorable)
Extracurricular activities
Sports oriented
Purchased services 34,437 34,437 -
Materials and supplies 22,797 16,340 6,457
Other 21,200 20,035 1,165
Total sports oriented 78,434 ?:0,32['277 7,622
Total extracurricular activities . 78,434 0,812 ‘ 7,622
Capital outlay ' 124,553 98,652 25,897
Total expenditures 1,802,678 1,552,246 250,432
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over B
expenditures (236,735) © 13,697 250,432
other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers-in 35,000 35,000 -
Advances-in 7,069 7,069 -
Advances-out (18,763 {18,763} -
Operating transfers-out (75) (763 -
Total other financing sources {(uses) 23,230 - 723,_?33 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources {(uses) (213,505} 36,927 250,432
Prior year encumbrances 24,658 24,658 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 336,763 334,763 -
Fund balantes, end of year s 147,926 § 398,358 § 250,432
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CAPITAL PROJECTS TUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for finmancial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds and trust funds).

Permanent Tmprovement Fund - This fund accounts for the acguisition,

construction or Improvement of capital facilities other than those
financed by proprietary and trust funds.

School Net Plus Fund - This fund accounts for wiring of schools for voice,
video and data communications.
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Assets

Equity in pooted cash
Receivables, net of allowance
Taxes, current
Yaxes, delinquent
Interfund receivable

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable
Interfund payable
Deferred revenue
Taxes

Total Lliabilities

Fund balance
Reserved for property taxes
Reserved for encumbrances

Unreserved

Total fund balances

Total liagbilities and fund balances

HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALAMCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 1699

PERMANENT SCHOOL
IMPROVEMENTS NET PLUS TOTAL
$ 539,886 s 34,130 574,016
1,044,096 - 1,044,096
42,046 - 42,046
5. 000 - 5,000
s 1,631,028 % 34,130 1,665,158
s 55,237 $ - 55, 257
250, 000 - 250,000
966,572 - 966,572
1,271,809 - 1,271,809
119,570 . 119,570
403,115 17,577 420,692
(163 466) 16,553 (146.913)
359,219 34,130 © 393,349
s 1,631,028 % 34,130 1,665,158
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Revenues
Taxes
Interest
intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Regular
Supporting services
Central services
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

« '
NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

PERMANENT SCHOOL
IMPROVEMENTS NET PLUS TOTAL
s 1,051,316 - s 1,051,316
11,638 - 11,638
123,017 145,686 268,703
1,185,971 145,686 1,331,657
. 47 347
- 5,434 6,434
1,113,093 142,235 1,255,328
1,113,093 149,016 1,262,109
72,878 (3,330 69,548
286,341 37,460 323,801
s 359,219 34,130 s 193,349
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HNORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues
Taxes
Interest
Intergovernmental
Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Advances-in
Advances-out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other scurces (uses)

Prior year encumbrances
Fund balances, beginning of vear

Fund balances, end of year

PERMANENT
IMPROVEMENTS FUND
Variance
Favarable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
s 1,028,621 % 1,009,451 % (19,1703
&,400 11,638 2,238
122,000 123,017 1,017
1,160,021 1,144,106 (15,915)
1,612,871 1,541,587 71,284
1,612,871 1,541,587 71,284
(452,850) (397,481) 55,369
250,000 250,000 -
(51,0003 (51,000) -
199,000 199,000 -
(253,850) (198,481) 55,369
258,782 258,782 -
21,234 21,234 -
s 26,166 % 81,535 $ 55,369
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NORTH DLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVEMLES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENODED JUNE 30, 199%

SCHOOL NET PLUS FUND

Variance
Favarable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 145,686 % 145,686 % -
Total revenues 145,686 145,686 -
Expenditures
current
Instruction
Regular
salaries - 357 {347
Materials and supplies 15,000 11,412 3,588
Total regular 15,000 11,759 3,241
Total instruction 15,000 11,799 3,261
Supporting services
Central services
Purchased services 7,000 6,434 566
Total central services 7,000 6,634 566
Total supporting services 7,008 6,434 566
Capital outlay 161,146 148,400 12,746
Total expenditures 183,146 164,593 16,553
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendi tures (37,460) {20,907 16,553
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 37,460 37,460 -
Fund balances, end af year - - $ 16,553 $ 16,553
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WORTH OLMSTED CYTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHAMGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NDN-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

COMBINED CAPITAL
PROJECTS FUNDS

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorablie)
Revenues '
Taxes $ 1,028,621 $ 1,009,451 % 219, 1703
interest 2,400 11,638 2,238
Intergovermmental 267,686 268,703 1,017
Total revenues 1,305,707 1,289,792 (15,915
Expenditures
Current
Instruction
Regular
Salaries - 34T C347Y
Materials and supplies 15,000 11,412 3,588
Total regular 15,000 11,759 3,261
Total instruction 15,000 11,759 3,241
Supporting services '
Central services
Purchased services 7,000 . 6,434 566
Tatal central services 7,000 _ 6,434 566
Total supporting services 7,000 6,434 566
Capital outlay 1,774,017 1,689,987 84,030
Tatal expenditures 1,796,017 1,708,180 87,837
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (490,310} (418,388) 71,922
Other financing sources (uses) . . )
Advances-in 250,000 - 250,000 -
Advances-out . . (51,000) ¢51,000} -
Total other financing sources (uses) 199,000 199,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources {uses)} (291,310) (219,388) 71,922
Prior year encumbrances 258,782 258,782 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 58,5694 58,694 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 26,166 98,088 $ 71,922
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in
a2 marmer =imilar to private business enterprises where the intent of the
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges or where the governing body had decided
that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or mnet
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability or other purposes.

Food Service Fupnd - This fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
related to the provision of food service for the School District,

Unj Supplies d - This fund accounted for student fees
collected for the purchase of instructional supplies and materials used to
supplement the curriculum.

Adult FEducatiopn Fund - This fund accounts for revenues and expenses
related to the provision of credit and non-credit classes to the
community.

B89



Lo *

HMORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINIKG BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 3D, 1999

FOOD UNIFORM ADULY
SERVICE SCHOOL SUPPLIES EDUCATION TOTAL
Assets
Equity in pooled cash $ 4,658 % - 18,386 $ 23,044
Receivables, net of allowance
Accounts and other 562 - - 5862
Due from other govertments 38,425 - - 38,425
Inventories and supplies 41,484 - - 41,484
Fixed assets 436,741 - &£3,206 499,947
Accumulated depreciation (357,824) - {32,011 (389,835)
Tatal assets $ 164,046 8 - 49,581 % 213,827
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts pavable - 1,729 % - - $ 1,729
sccrued saleries, wages aend benefits 47,100 - 1,189 48,289
Due to other governments 79,811 - 1,355 81,166
interfund payable 88,354 - - 88,354
Deferred revenue
Intergavernmental 19,119 - - 19,119
Compensated absences 11,400 - - 11,400
Total Lliabilities 247,513 - 2,544 250,057
Equity
Cantributed capital 430,559 - - 2,658 433,217
rRetained earnings (deficit) (514,026% - 44 379 (469 ,647)
Total equity (83,4673 - 47,037 (36,430)
Total liabilities and equity ] 164,046 % - 49,581 % 213,627
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Operating revenues
Tuition and fees

sales
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Contractual service
Materials and supplies
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)

Neonoperating revenues {(expenses)

Interest

Intergovernmental
Loss on sale of assets

Jotal nonoperating revenues {expenses)
{Loss) before operating transfers
Operating transfers

Dperating transfers-in
Het income (loss}
Retained earnings, beginning of year
Residual equity transfer-out

Retained earnings, end of vear

)

,

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

FOOD UNTFORM fouLT
SERVICE SCHOOL SUPPLIES EDUCATION TOTAL
$ - s - 53,478 & 53,478
859,585 - . 899,585
- - 150 150
899,585 - 53,628 953,213
404,248 - 16,088 420,336
149,531 - 6,907 156,438
622,586 - 30,158 652 844
8,855 - 1,744 70,599
9,868 - 41340 14,208
1,255,188 - 59,237 1,314,425
(355,603) - (5,609 (361,212)
1,085 - - 1,055
314,819 - - 314,819
(7013 - - ¢701)
15,173 - - 315,173
(40,430) - (5,609) (46,039}
40,000 - - 60,000
19,570 - (5,609) 13,961
(533,596) 80,570 49,988 (403, 038)
; (80,5703 - (20,570)
s (514,026) 5 . 44,379 469,847
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

FOOD UNIFORM ADULT
SERVICE SCHOOL SUPPLIES EDUCATION TOTAL
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating (loss) $ (355,603, % - 3 (5,609 & (361,212)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation @,868 - 4,340 14,208
Donated commodities used 65416 - - 65,416
changes in net assets (increase) _
decrease and liabilities
increase (decrease):

Receivables, accounts and other (562) - - {562)

pue from other governments {38,425) - - (38,425)

Inventories and supplies 10,099 - - ¢10,099)

Accounts and contracts pavable 850 (40} - 820

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits (5,949 - 215 (5,734

Due to other governments (13,117 - 261 (12,8586)

Interfund payable (15,000} - - (15,0003

Deferred revenue 4,274 - - 4,274

Compensated absences (149} - - (149)

Total adjustments (2,883 (40) 4,816 1,893
Net cash (used in) operating activities (358,486 40y (793) (359,319
cash flows from non-capital
financing activities

Intergovernmental revenue 249,403 7 - - 249,403

Operating transfers-in 40,000 - - 40,000

Residual equity transfer-out - (80,570} - {80,570)
Net cash provided by (used in} B L . R

non-capital financing activities 309,403 £80,570) - 228,833
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities

Acouisition of fixed assets - - ¢15,580) ¢15,580%

Net cash (used in) capital and related
financing activities - - (15,580) (15,580)
Cash flows from investing activities )

Interest income 1,055 - . - 1,055
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,055 - - 1,055
Net (decrease} in cash

and cash equivalents (48,028) (80,610 {16,373 145,011
Equity in pooled cash and

equivalents, beginning of year 52,685 80,610 34,759 168,055
Equity in pooled cash and

equivalents, end of year s 4,658 8% - s 18,385 % 23,044
Nan-cash transactions:

Disposal of fixed assets,

net book value 3 701 % - s - $ 701
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

FOOD
SERVICE FUND
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues
Sales $ 882,256 $ 859,023 $ 16,767
Total opesrating revenues 882,256 B99,023 16,757
Operating expenses
Food service operations
Salaries and wages 411,197 410,346 851
Fringe benefits 164,117 162,648 1,469
purchased services 623,209 622,686 523
Materials and supplies 8,320 8,221 99
Total food service operations 1,206,843 1,203,901 2,942
Capital outiay 200 183 17
Total operating expenses 1,207,043 1,204,084 2,959
Excess (deficiency) of operating
revenues over aperating expenses (324,787) (305,061> 19,726
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest . 700 1,055 155
Intergovernmental 238,100 210,978 (27,122)
Advances-out (15,000} {15,000} -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses} 225,800 197,033 (26,767)
Excess (deficiency of revenues over
expenses before operating transfers {100,987) ¢108,028) (7,041
Operating transfers
Operating transfers-in 50,000 60,000 10,000
Total operating transfers 50,000 60,000 10,000
Net excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses (50,987 (48,028) 2,959
Prior year encumbrances 1,129 1,129 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 51,557 51,557 -
Fund balances, end of year % 1,699 S 4,658 % 2,959
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIYURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

UNIFORM SCHOOL

SUPPLIES FUND
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Operating revenues
Classroom materials and fees % 10,118 $ - s (10,118}
Total operating revenues 10,118 - (10,118}
Operating expenses
Instruction
Materials and supplies 10,118 - 10,118
Total instruction i 10,118 - 10,118
Total operating expenses 10,118 - 10,118
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenses before operating transfers - - -
Operating transfers .
Operating transfers-out €80,610) (80,510) -
Total operating transfers (80,5107 (80,6103 -
Net excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses (80,610) (80,610) -
Prior year encumbrances 10,118 10,118 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 70,492 70,492 -
Fund balances, end of year 3 - $ - 1 -
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES INM
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

ADULT
EDUCATION FUND
- variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Operating revenues
Tuition and fees s 53,476 & 53,478 % 2
Other 150 150 -
Total operating revenues 53,626 53,628 ) z
Qperating expenses
Instruction
Adult and continuing education
Salaries ) 17,540 15,874 1.685
Benefits 9,357 &,646 2. ™1
Purchased services 38,754 30,158 8,606
Materials and suppliies 3,380 1,816 1,564
Dther 800 - 800
Total adult and continuing education 69,861 54,494 15,367 -
Total instruction 69,861 5@,494 15,367
Capital outlay 16,300 16,120 180
Total operating expenses 856,161 70,614 15,547
Net excess (deficiency} of
Favenues over expenses (32,535) (16,986 15,549
Prior year encumbrances 1,164 1,164 -
Fund balances, beginhing of year 33,595 33,595 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 2,224 % 17,773 S 15,549
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HWORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHARGES [N FUND BALANCES -~
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NOM-GAAP BASIS) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

COMBINED
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Operating revenues -
Tuition and fees 3 53,476 % 53,478 % 2
Sales 882,256 899,023 16,767
Classroom materials and fees __ 10,118 - (10,118}
Other 150 ) 150 _ -
Total operating revenues 246,000 952,4651 6,651-
Operating expenses
Instruction ‘
Adult and eontinuing education
Salaries 17,560 15,874 1,686
Benefits 9,357 6,646 2,71
Purchased services . 35,764 30,158 8,606
Materials and supplies 3,380 1,816 1,564
Other 800 - 800
Total adult and continuing education 49,861 54,496 15,367
Materials and supplies 10,118 - 10,118
Total instruction 79,979 54,494 25,485
Food service operations
Salaries and wages 411,197 410,346 851
Fringe benefits 164, 117 162,648 1,469
Purchased services . 62%,209 622,686 523
Materials and supplies 8,320 8,221 o
Total food service cperations 1,206,843 1,203,901 2,942
Capital outiay 16,500 16,303 197
Total aperating expenses 1,303,322 ©1,274,698 28,624
Excess (deficiency) of operating ’ )
revenues over operating expenses {357,322 (322,047 35,275
Nonoperating revenues {expenses) B B i
Interest 700 1,055 155
Intergovernmental 238,100 210,978 (27,122
Advances-out . {15,000} (15,0003 -
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) 223,800 197,033 (26,787
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenses before operating transfers . {133,522) (125,014) 8,508
Operating transfers L
Operating transfers-in 50,000 &0,000 10,000
Operating transfers-out (80,510} {80,510} -
Total operating transfers (30,610} (20,5103 10,000
Net excess {deficiency) of
revenues over expenses (164,132} (145,624) 18,508
Prior year encumbrances 12,411 12,411 -
Fund balances, beginning of year 155,644 155,644 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 3,983 % 22,431 $ 18,508
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

These funds account for the financing of services provided by one department or

agency to another department or agency of the School District onm a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Regional Transit Fund - This fund accounts for all revenues and expenses

related to the purchase and resale of city trahsit system Bus tickets for
student transportation. . '

Coptracted Bus Maintenance Fund - This fund accounts for all revenues and

expenses related to the provision of bus maintenance and fepalr services
to other school districts.

Rotary Fund - This fund accounts for all revenues and expenses related to
telephone commissions and vending machines at the District high school.
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Assets

Eguity in pooled cash
Receivables, net of allowance
Accounts and other

Total assets

Liabilities and equity

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable

Total tiabilities
Equity

Retained earnings
Total equity

Total Liabilities and equity

*q

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

a

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 1999

REGIQNAL CONTRACTED BUS
TRANSIT MATNTENANCE ROTARY TOTAL
2,975 % 56,432 769 40,174
- 7,333 . 7,333
2,973 8 63,765 769 67,507
- s 4,452 - 4,452
4,452 - 4,452
2,973 59,313 769 63,055
2,973 59,313 769 £3,055
2,973 s 63,765 769 67,507
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Operating revenues
Sales
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating axpenses
Contractual service
Materials and supplies
Gther expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Operating transfers
Operating transfers-in
Net (loss)

Retained earnings, beginning of year

Retained earnings, end of year

% e
HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICY
INTERNAL SERVICES FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

REGIONAL CONTRACTED 8US
TRANSIT MAINTENANCE ROTARY TOTAL
s 52,397 % - s - 52,397
; 62,333 - 62,333
52,397 62,333 - 114,730
69,802 10,927 1,120 81,849
- 53,337 - 53,337
- 16,554 - 16,554
69,802 80,818 1,120 151,740
€17,405) ¢18,485) €1,120) (37,010
15,000 . - 15,000
(2,405) ¢18,485) €1,120) (22,010)
5,378 77,798 -1,889 85,065
s 2,975 $ 59,313 § 769 s 63,055
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Changes in net assets (increase)
decrease and liabilities
increase (decrease):
Receivables, accounts and other
Accounts and contracts payable

Total adjustments
Net cash (used fn) operating activities
Cash flows from non-capital
financing activities

Operating transfers-in

Met cash provided by
non-capital financing activities

Het (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Equity in pooled cash and
equivalents, beginning of year

Equity in pooled cash and
equivalents, end of year

I

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL PISTRILT
INTERNAL SERVICES FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 199%

REGIONAL CONTRACTED BUS
TRANSIT MAINTENANCE ROTARY TOTAL
) (17,405 (18,435) $ €1,120) s 37,010)
- 1,169 - 1,169
- " 4552 - 4,452
- B - 5,621
¢17,405) O (12,864) ey 31,389
15,000 - - 15,000
15,000 - . 15,000
(2,405) (12,864) (1,120 (16,389)
5,378 69,296 1,889 76,563
2,975 % 56,432 769 s 60,174
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

REGIONAL TRANSIT FUND

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Dperating revenues
Sales s 52,397 & 52,397 % -
Total operating revenues 52,397 52,397 -
Operating expenses
Transportation services
Purchased services 72,000 69,802 2,198
Total transportation services 72,000 69,802 2,198
Total operating expenses 72,000 69,802 2,198
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenses before operating transfers 19,603) {17,405) 2,198
Operating transfers ) -
Cperating transfers-in 15,000 15,000 -
Total operating transfers 15,000 15,000 -
Net excess {deficiency) of
revenues over expenses (4,603 (2,405) 2,198
Priot vear encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year © 5,378 5,378 -
Fund balances, end of year s 775 3 2,973 8 2,198
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Operating revenues
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Transportation services
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Other exXpenses

Total transportation services

Capital outlay
Total operating expenses

Net excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses

Priot year encumbrances
Fund balances, beginning of

Fund balances, end of vyear

year

" 1

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCROOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

CONTRACTED BUS
MAINTENANCE FUND

Variaﬁce
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabie)
$ 63,502 % 63,502 % -
63,502 63,502 -
15,299 10,927 4,372
81,995 47,898 34,097
16,554 16,554 .
113,848 75,379 38,469
16,966 14,818 148
128,814 90,197 38,617
(65.312) (26,695) 38,617
69,296 69,296 -
s 3,986 42,601 38,617
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RORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

ROTARY FUND

variance

Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

Operating expenses .
Instructional support services

Purchased services s 1,487 3 1,120 % 367
Total instructional suppert services 1,487 1,120 357
Total operating expenses 1,487 1,120 367
Net excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses (1,487) (1,129 367
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,889 1,88% -
Fund balances, end of year $ 402 % 7659 S 367
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NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {NON-GAAF BASIS) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

COMBINED INTERNAL
SERVICE FUND

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues
Sales % 52,397 % 52,397 $ -
Other 43,502 63,502 -
Total operating revenues 115,899 115,899 -
Operating expenses
Instructional support services
Purchased services ] 1,487 1,120 367
Total instructiomal support services . 1,487 1,120 36T
Transportation services
Purchased services 87,299 80,729 6,570
Materials and supplies 81,995 47,898 34,097
Other expenses 16,554 16,554 -
Total transportation services 185,848 145,181 40,667
Capital outlay 14,966 14,818 148
Total operating expenses 202,301 161,119 47,182
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues over
expenses before operating transfers (84,402) (45,2203 41,182
Cperating transfers B
Operating transfers-in 15,000 15,000 -
Total operating transfers 15,000 15,000 -
Net excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses (71,402) {30,220) 41,182
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 76,563 T 76,563 -
Fund balances, end of vear % 5,161 % 46,343 % 41,182
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee
capacity. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other
funds. ' '

Expendable Trus unds :

o ust - This fund accounts for local revenues to support
scholarships.

Kraley Art Trust - This fund accounts for local revenues to support
scholarships and curriculum improvements.

Age nds ;
Student Activities - This fund accounts for resources that belong to the

student bodies of wvariocus schools; accounting for sales and other revenue
generating activities.
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HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

k3

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 1999
EXPENDABLE AGENCY
TRUST FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL
Assets
Equity in pooled cash % =9 s 60,921 81,160
Total assets 3 239 s 60,921 &1,160
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts and contracts pavyabte s - $ 2,569 2,569
Due to students - 52,352 52,352
Interfund payable - 6,000 &,000
Total liabilities - &0,921 60,921
fund balances
Unreserved 239 - 239
Total fund balances 239 - 239
Total Lliabilities and fund balances s 239 % 60,921 61,160
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Assets

Equity in pooled cash

Total assets

Fund balances

Fund balance
Unreserved

Total fund balances

1

HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DESTRICT

; €

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 1999
SANFORD KRALEY
TRUST TRUST TOTAL
| 131 s 108 239
T s 108 ) 239
131 s 108 239
31 s 108 239
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Expenditures
Current
Supporting services
Instructional staff
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balances, beginning of vear

Fund balances, end of year

1 1

HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

SARFORD KRALEY
TRUST TRUST TOTAL
s 15 s - s 145
T ass - - s
(145) - €145)
276 108 384
s O omos 108 $ 239

108



' v

HORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEQULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

SANFORD TRUST FUND

Variance
Favorsble
Budget Actualb {Unfavorable)
Expenditures
Current

Supporting services
Instructional staff

Materials and supplies $ 276 % 145 % 131

Total instructional staff 276 145 131

Total supperting services 276 145 131

Total expenditures ) 276 - 1&57 131

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over ‘ N -

expendi tures (276} (145) 131
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 276 276 -

Fund balances, end of vear ) V V 131

5 - s 131 ¢
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Excegs (deficiency) aof revenues over
expenditures

Prior year encumbrances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

a, - a

NORTH QLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AMD ACTUAL (NON-—GAAP BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

KRALEY TRUST FUND

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3 - L - $ -
108 108 -
% 108 $ 108 % -

110 - -



o vt
MORTH ULMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES — BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

COMBINED EXPENDABLE

TRUST FUNDS
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Expendi tures )
Ccurrent
Supporting services
Instructional staff i .
Materials and supplies $ 276 % 145 3 k)
Total instructional staff 276 145 131
Total supporting services 276 o 145 131
Tota! expenditures ' 276 U 131
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over : )
expenditures (276) £145) 131
Prior year encumbrances - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year 384 384 -
fund balances, end of year $ 108 $ “_m-éfggii 131
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Assets

Equity in pooled cash

Total assets

Liabjlities
Accounts and contracts payable
Due to students
interfund pavable

Total liabilities

4 1

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISYRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AKD LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

STUDENT ACTIVITIES FUND

BEGINNING BALANCE

ENDING BALANCE

JUNE 30, 1998 ADDITIONS DEDUCT IONS JUNE 30, 1999
s 59,769 163,233 % 162, 081 40,921
s 59,769 163,235 8 162,081 66,921
s 2,569 .y - 2,569
51,300 163,133 162,081 52,352
5,900 100 - 6,000
s 59,769 163,233 3 162,081 60,921
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CGENERAL FIXED ASOEIS

This group of accounts is used to account for all sites, buildings, equipment and
vehicles not used in the operations of the Proprietary Funds.
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FUNCTION

Instruction
Administration

Operation and maintenance
of plant services

Pupil transportation
services

Extracurricular activities

Total general ¥Tixed assets

FUNCTION

Instruction
Administration

Operation and maintenance
of plant services

Pupil transportation
services

Extracurricular activities

Total general fixed assets

o

HORTH OLMSTED £ITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND TYPE

JUNE 30, 1999
LAND AND FURNITURE

IMPROVEMENTS BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT VEHICLES TOTAL

$ 947,819 $ 12,676,381 $ 3,871,304 s 81,375 $ 17,570,879
32,652 602,235 864,043 - 1,478,930
304,443 1,330,054 754,819 347,811 2,737,127
15,000 1,011,846 110,217 1,762,244 2,899,307
360,197 165,652 144,892 - 670,741

$ 1,634,111 $ 15,786,168 $ 5,745,275 $ 2,191,430 $ 25,356,984

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

BALANCE BALANCE
JUNE 30, 1998 INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30, 1999
$ 17,344,506 $ 354,671 E 128,298 17,570,879

1,276,603 208,927 6,600 1,478,930
2,361,132 470,883 94 B8 2,737,127
2,788,550 163,241 52,484 2,899,307
468,775 3,016 1,050 670,741

$ 24,439,566 $ 1,200,738 s 283,320 25,356,984
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General Fixed Assets

Land and improvements
Buitdings

Furniture and equipment

vehicles

+ [

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE DF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY SCURCE
JUNE 30, 1999

s 1,634,111
15,786,168
5,745,275
2,191,430

$ 25,356,984

Investment in General Fixed Assets from:

General Fured

Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects

Fiduciary Funds
Acquisitions prior to 1994

Total investment in general
fixed assets

-Equipment and

Vehicles Total by
Land and Inctuding Fund Type or
Improvements Buildings Leases Other Source
$ - $ - $ 1,611,448 1,611,446
- - 458,398 458,398
- _ . 2,837,878 1,705,789 4,543,667
- - 1,495 1,696
1,634,111 12,948,290 4,159,378 18,741,777
$ 1,634,111 $ 15,786,168 $ 7,934,705 $ 25,356,984
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88 East Broad Street

P.O. Box 1140

Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-1490

www.auditor.state.oh.us

STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

Jiv PETRO, AUDITCOR OF STATE

NORTH OLMSTED CITY SCHOOL. DISTRICT

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and
which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

, aan, Boftise

Date: JAN 1 12000
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